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Lori A. Weaver
Commissioner 218 EAST ROAD, HAMPSTEAD, NH 03841 -
603-329-5311  Fax: 603-329-5529
Justin Looser www.dhhs.nh.gov

Chicf Executive Officer

May 21, 2024
His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Councit
State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Hampstead Hospital and
Residential Treatment Facility, to enter into a Sole Source contract with Easter Seals New
Hampshire, Inc. (VC# 177204), Manchester, NH, in the amount of $20,000 to provide physical,
occupational, and speech therapy services for children and young adults receiving psychiatric
behavioral health services at Hampstead Hospital & Residential Treatment Facility, with the option
to renew for up to three (3) additional years, effective July 1, 2024, upon Governor and Council |
approval through June 30, 2026. 33.33% General Funds. 66.67% Other Funds (Agency Income).

Funds are available in the foliowing account for State Fiscal Year 2025 and are anticipated
to be available in State Fiscal Year 2026, upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items within the price
limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and
justified.

05-95-98-980010-2648 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: Hampstead Hospital, Hampstead Hospital Operations

State Class |/

| Fiscal Year {  Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount
2025 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 98000102 $10,000
2026 | 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 98000102 $10,000 |
' Total $20,000
EXPLANATION

The Department presented a request to the Executive Council on May 15, 2024 (item
#18A) to transition behavioral health service providers at Hampstead Hospital and Residential
Treatment Facility (HHRTF). During this transition, the Department must also enter into contracts
-for non-clinical and operational services that have been subcontracted to date by the prior
behavioral health service provider at HHRTF. This request is Sole Sourc¢e because HHRTF must
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avoid any gap in these services, and the Contractor is the current provider at HHRTF and
therefore the only known vendor able to continue services without interruption. The Department
will competitively procure for these services in the future.

The purpose of this request is for the Contractor to provide physical, occupational, and
speech therapy services to children and young adults receiving psychiatric behavioral health
services at Hampstead Hospital & Residential Treatment Facility (HHRTF) or via telehealth, in
accordance with the individual's IEP or 504 Plan and therapist and family.

The Contractor will be responsible for providing a m'inimum of 20 hours of physical,
occupational, and speech therapy services per week.

Approximately 4 Children, adolescents and young adults with severe and complex mental
“health issues will be served annually.

Physical, occupational, and speech therapy services are necessary to assist patients at

HHRTF io maintain, regain, or improve the relevant skills needed for daily living and

" independence. The Contractor will use a variety of therapeutic techniques that are allgned with
patient-centered care plans. .

The Department WI|| monitor services by reviewing monthly reports submitted by the
Contractor and ensuring the progress towards the goals within the individual's medical plan.

As referenced in Exhibit A of the attached agreement, the parties have the option to extend
the agreement for up three (3) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services,
. available funding, agreement of the partiejs and Governor and Council approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, HHRTF will be. unable to
provide physical, occupational, and speech therapy services, which will impact the ability of
patients to maintain, regain and improve daily living skills.

Area served: Hampstead Hospital and Residential Treatment Facility

In the event that the Other Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Weaver
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and fanitlies
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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Subjeet: physical, Occupational, and Speech Therapy (SS-2025-HH-10-PHYSI-01)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become piiblic upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must.
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1 State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name ' 1.4 Contractor Address

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. . 555 Aubum St

: ' Manchester, NH, 03101
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Unit and Class 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number - ‘ TBD , $20,000
(603) 623-8863 1 June 30, 2026
| 1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency ' 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

Robert W. Moore, Director (603) 271-9631

I.11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
o~ DocuSignad hy: B

(,af&uim kulun, Dateé/Z 8/2024  |catherine Kuhn C00, Programs
kS g?a?e%‘é‘é‘ﬁcy Signature ' 1.14 Name and Title.of State Agency Signatory
»~——DocuSigned by;
jlkSﬁVb M. {,oosw . Dateé/29/2024 Justin M. Looser CEO

B SO TR e AT
I.15

Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) {if applicable)

DocuSigned by:
By: iju, G.enino On: 5/29/2024

FAATAAARASAN N

G&C Item number: G&C'Méeting Date:

! DS
Page 1 of 4 | Us’-
Contractor Initials

Date5/28/2024
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
{“State”), engages contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor™)
to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of
goods, or both, identified and more particularly described in the
attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithsianding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject: to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive Council
approve this Agreement, unless no such approval is required, in
which case the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block 1.13
{“Effective Date™).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the Effective
Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to the
Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the Contractor,
and in the event that this Agreement does not become effective, the
State shall have no liability to the Contractor, including without
limitation, any obligation to pay the Contractor for any costs
incurred or Services performed:

3.3 Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT,
Notwithstanding any provisién of this Agreement to the contrary,
all obligaticns of the State hereunder, including; without limitation,

the continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon the,

availability and continued appropriation of funds. In no event shall

the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such

available appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or
termination of appropriated funds by any state or federal legislative
or executive action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies
the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in part,
the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately npon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination. The
State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds
in that Account are reduced or unavailable,

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ PAYMENT. *
5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or-actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8. The

hereof, and shall be the only and the complete compensation to the
Contractor for the Services.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the -Contractor-under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-¢ or any other provision of law.

5.4 The State’s liability under this Agreement shall be limited to
monetary-damages not to exceed the total fees paid. The Contractor
agrees that it has an adequate remedy at law for any breach of this
Agréement by the State and hereby waives any right to specific
performance or other equitable remedies against the State.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws and the Governor’s order on Respect
and Civility in the Workplace, Executive order 2020-01. In
addition, if this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all federal
executive orders, rules, regulations and statutes, and with any rules,
regulations and guidelines as the State or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor shall also comply
with all applicable intellectual property laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for emplioyment
because of age, sex, sexual orientation, race, color, marital status,
physical or mental disability, religious creed, national origin,
gender identity, or gender expression, and will take affirmative
action to prevent such discrimination, unless exempt by state or
federal law. The Contractor shall ensure any subcentractors
comply with these nondiscrimination requirements.

6.3 No payments or transfers of value by Contractor or its
representatives 'in connection with this Agreement have or shall be
made which have the purpose or effect of public or commercial
bribery, or acceptance of or acquiescence in. extortion, kickbacks,
or other unlawful or improper means of obtaining business.

6.4. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor’s books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with this Agreement and
all rules, regulations and orders pertaining to the covenants, terms
and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to,perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that all
personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to perform the
Services, and shall be propérly licensed and otherwise authorized
to do so-under all applicable laws.

7.2 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or any
successor, shall be the State’s point of contact pertaining to this

payment by the State of the contract price shall be the only and the Agreement.
complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all expenses, of
whatever nature incurred by thé Contractor in the performance Ds
Page 2 of 4 ' ' | (/L"
Contractor Initials

Date 5/28/2024
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder (“Event
of Default”™):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.

. 8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice spec1fymg the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a
greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) calendar days
from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely
cured, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) calendar days
after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price which
would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the period from
the date of such notice until such time as the State determines that
the Contractor has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid
to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may-owe
to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the Agreement
and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in wheole or in
part, by thirty (30) calendar days written notice to the Contractor
that the State is exercising its option fo terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for any
reason other than the: completion of the Services, the Contractor
shall, at the State’s discretion, deliver to the Contracting Officer,
not later than fifteen (15) calendar days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) describing in detail
all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to and
including the date .of termination. In addition, at the State’s
discretion, the Contractor shall, within fifteen (15) calendar days
of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the State a
transition plan for Services under the Agreement.

10. PROPERTY OWNERSHIP/DISCLOSURE.,

" 10.1 Aswused in this Agreement, the word “Property™ shall mean
all data, information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, files,
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether finished or
unfinished.

Page 3 of 4

10.2 All data and any Property which has been received from the
State, or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under this
Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be returned
to the State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement
for any reason.

10.3 Disclosute of data, information and other records shall be
governed by N.H. RSA chapter 91-A and/or other applicable law.
Disclosure requires prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE-STATE. In the
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects an
independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an employee of
the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its officers, employees,
agents or members shall have authority to bind the State or receive
any benefits, workers’ compensation or other emoluments
provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 Contractor shall provide the State written notice at least fifteen
(15) calendar days before any proposed assignment, delegation, or
other transfer of any interest in this Agreement. No such
assignment, delegation, or other transfer shall be effective without
the written consent of the State,

12.2 For purpeses of paragraph 12, a Change of Control shall
constitute assignment. “Change of Control” means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the direct
or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the voting
shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting power of the
Contractor; or (b) the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of
the Contractor.

12.3 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor
without prior written notice and consent of the State, -

12.4 The State is entitled to- copies of all subcontracts and
assignment. agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions
contained in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it
is not a party.

13, INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall indemnify,
defend, and hold harmless the State, its officers, and employees
from and against all actions, claims, damages, demands,
Judgments, fines, liabilities, losses, and other expenses, including,
without 11m1tat10n, reasonable attorneys’ fees, arising out of or
relating to this Agreement directly or indirectly arising from death,
personal injury, property damage, intellectual property
infringement, or other claims asserted against the State, its officers,
or employees caused by the acts or omissions of negligence,
reckless or willful misconduct, or fraud by the Contractor, its
employees, agents, or subcontractors. The State shall not be liable
for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under this
paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the State’s
sovereign immunity, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the termination

of this Agreement.
C
Contractor Initialg

Date5/28/2024
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14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at' its sole expense, obtain and
continuously mdintain in.force, and shall require any subcontractor
or assignée to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance: '

- 14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims of

bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not'less than
$1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate or excess;
and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all Property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not-less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the Property. '
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be on
policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State of
New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and issued
by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire,

. 14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or any successor, a certificate{s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement. At the
request of the Contracting Officer, or any successor, the Contractor
shall provide certificate(s) of insurance for all renewal(s) of
insurance required under this ‘Agreement, The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies and
warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt from,
the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A (“Workers’
Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements of*
N.H. RSA chapter 28]-A, Contractor shall maintain, and require
any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain, payment of
Workers” Compensation in connection' with activities which' the
person proposes to undertake pursuant to this Agreement. The
Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block
1.9, or any successor, proof of Workers® Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are incorporated
herein by reference. The State shall not be responsible for payment
of any Workers” Compensation premiums or for any other claim or
benefit for Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of
Contractor, which might arise under applicable State of New
Hampshire Workers’ Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. A State's failure to enforce its rights
with respect to any single or continuing breach of this Agreement
shall not act as a waiver of the right of the State to later enforce any
such rights or to enforce any other or any subsequent breach.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall
be deemed to have been duly deliveréd or given at the time of
mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States Post
Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in blocks 1.2
and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or
discharged only by an instrument in'writing signed by the parties
hereto and only after approval of such amendment, waiver or
discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of the State of
New Hampshiré unless no such approval is required under the
circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

19. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM.
19.1 This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and construed

in accordance with the laws of the State of New Iampshire except

where the Federal supremacy clause. requires otherwise. The
wording used in this Agreement is the wording chosen by the
parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule of construction
shall be applied against or in favor of any party.

19.2 Any actions arising out of this Agreement, including the
breach or alleged breach thereof, may not be submitted t6 binding
arbitration, but must, instead, be brought and maintained in the
Merrimack County Superior Court of New Hampshire which shall -
have exclusive jurisdiction thercof:

20, CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict between
the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT A) and any
other portion of this Agreement including any attachments thereto,
the terms of the P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control,

21, THIRD PARTIES. This Agreement is being entered into for
the sole benefit of the parties hereto, and nothing herein, express or
implied, is intended to or will confer any legal or equitable right,
benefit, or remedy of any nature upon any other person.

22. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are for

reference purposes only, and the words contained therein shall in

no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this-

Agreement.

23. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

24. FURTHER ASSURANCES. The Contractor, along with its
agents and affiliates, shall, at its own cost and expense, execute any
additional documents and take such further actions as may be
reasonably required to carry out the provisions of this Agreement
and give effect to the transactions contemplated hereby.

25. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

-26, ENTIRE AGREEM__ENT. This- Agreement, which may be

executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter

hereof.
D5
Page 4 of 4 | C\[,‘L
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Physmal Occupatlonal and Speech Therapy

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1"".": Revision's'to Form P-37, ‘GeﬁeraI.Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effectlve Date/Completion of Serwces [s
-.amended as.follows:

3.1.

f

Notwithstanding any prowsmn of this Agreement to the contrary, and
subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the
State of New Hampshire, this Agreement, and all obligations of the
parties hereunder, shall becomé effective on July-1, 2024 (‘Effeétive
Date”).

1.2. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by deletlng e

b

subparagraph 3.3 in its entirety and replacing it as follows:
3.3.

Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date speciﬁéd
in block 1.7. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to three (3)

additional years from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory

delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties,. and
approval of the Governor and- Executive Council.

1.3. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by addlng
~ subparagraph 12.5 as follows: _

#

12.5. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual condltlons as the

. Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
"~ compliance with those conditions.- The Contractor shall have written

agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed,

~ and if applicable, a Business Associate Agreement.in accordance with

the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Written. -
agreements shall specify how corrective action shall be managed. The
Contractor shall manage the subcontractor’s performance on an ongoing
basis and take corrective action-as necessary. The Contractor. shall
annually provide the State with a list of all subcentractors provided for
undér this Agreement and notify the. State of any - [nadequate
subcontractor performance.

: | ) I | | C
. $8-2025-HH-10-PHYSI-01 A-1.2 g Contractor |nitials

Easter Seals New Hampshlre Inc. - R Page 1 of 1 - Date

7.14.23

5/28/2024
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‘New Ham'pshife Department of Health and Human’ Services
Physncal Occupational, and Speech Therapy

EXHIBIT B

Scope. of Services
: -

1. Statement of Work

1.1.

| 1.2.

1.3. -

1.4.

'$5-2025-HH-10-PHYS!1-01 " B-2.0 Contractor Initials

Easter Seals New-Hampshire, Inc. Page 1 0f5

The Contractor must provide up to 20 hours. per week ‘or over 20 hours per
week, with approval from the Department based on the need for physical,
occupational, and speech therapy sérvices. for children and young adults
receiving psychiatric behavioral heaith services at Hampstead Hospital &
Residential Treatment Facility (HHRTF) or via telehealth, in accordarice with
the individuals IEP or 504 Plan and therapist and family, and in accordance
with the accreditation standards of The Joint Commission. accreditation
standards (TJC) and The Centers for Medicaid and Medicare Services (CMS)
Condltlons of Participation.

The Contractor must provide services between the hours of 8:00 AM to 5:00

‘PM" EST, Monday through Friday, unless otherwise approved by the .

Department. Service days and hours are flexible for the Contractor, as agreed
upon with the HHRTF CEO or deS|gnee :

The Contractor must:

1.3.1. Maintain active licensure to perform the services in this Agreement,
as required by the State of New Hampshire and provide a copy of
" licensure to the Department.

1.3.2. Respond to any requests for occupational therapy services fromv
' HHRTF within five (5) business days. '

©1.3.3. Initiate occupatlonal therapy services within five (5) busmess days of

a request from the youth re3|dent’s educational department.

1.3.4. Maintain medical records for serwces prowded including treatment
recommendations.

1.3.5. Provide verbal treatment update(s) as needed to the Director or
designee to allow the Director or designee to participate in IEP and/or
Section 504 meetings held by a youth’s sending school district, which
maintains responsibility to update the IEP and/or 504 Plan.

'1.36. Provide list of appropriate therapy equipment needed for occupational
therapy services, such as exercise balls, roller tubes, or games, which
the HHRTF CEO or designee will review for approval.

1.3.7. Provide approved therapy equipment for use during services.

" 1.3.8. Ensure all occupational therapy equipment |s accounted for at all -

times while on HHRTF premises.
1.3.9. Provide in-service presentations for clinical staff, as needed.

The Contractor must provide proof of immunizations required in accordance
with the Centers for Disease Control and Preventlon Recommendafi loaf_ for

5/28/2024
ate
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Serwces
Physmal Occupational, and Speech Therapy

EXHIBIT B

_Immunization of Health-Care Workers, Recommendations of the Advisory

Committee on Immunization Practices and the Hospital Infection Control

. Practices Advisory Committee for drivers and other personnel that will be on

the premises at HHRTF or in vehicles with patients, at the request of the
Department. This includes, but is not limited to, proof of:

1.4.1.

1.4.2.
1.4.3.
1.4.4,

1.4.5.

Tuberculosis screening results dated within the last year prlor to the
effective date of this agreement;

Hepatitis B vaccination or immunity in‘i_tiation;
Immunity to-measles, mumps,-rubella and chickenpox;

Influenza vaccination during influenza season if not contraindicated:
and

Tetanus, Diphtheria, and PertUSSIs (Tdap) vaccination withiti the past
ten (10) years.

1.5. Confidentiality

1.5.1.

1.5.2.

1.5.3.

1.5.4.

1.5.5.

1.5.6.

§8-2025-HH-10-PHYSI-01
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The Contractor must ensure all Contréctor staff assigned to work
onsite on HHRTF premises-completes:

1.5.1.1.  Appendix A, HHRTF Confidentiality Agreement prior to
starting work onsite.

1'.5_?1 .2: A 30-minute orientation regarding workplace safety, patient
confidentiality, and boundaries.

The Contractor must safeguard the confidentiality of youth residents’
identities and information in all conversations and any and all other

-matters.

The Contractor must comply with all state and:féderal laws, and state
administrative rules, relating to patient confidentiality.

The Contractor must ensure any maintained reports and/or
communications with youth residents comply with HHRTFs
confidentiality practices and policies.

The Contractor must meet all information secunty and privacy
requirements as set by the Department and in accordance with the
Départment’'s  Information Secunty Requirements Exhlblt_ as
referenced below.

The: Contractor must ensure any individuals involved in delivering
services through- this Agreement access, view, store, and discuss
Confidential Data in accordance with federal and state laws and
regulations and the Department’s Information Security Requirements
Exhibit. The Contractor must ensure said individuals have a justlf" able

]
B-2.0 . Contractor Initials’

5/28/2024 -
ate

. business need to access confidential data. The Contractf glust



\

DecuSign Envelope ID: 320D569A-FBOE-421C-B5B4-D002BEES3116

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Physical, Occupational, and Speech Therapy

EXHIBIT B

provide attestations upon Department request.

| 1.6. The Contractor must participate in meetmgs with the Department on.a monthly
basis, or as otherwise requested by the Department.

1.7. Reportlng

1.7.1.  The Contractor must submit monthly reports, on a report template
provided by the Department, to the HHRTF CEO or designee
specifying the number of referrals received; the number of youth
residents served; the number of services hours needed;-and the
number of service hours provided.

1.7.2. The Contractor must provide key data in.a format and ata frequency
specified by the Department for the foIIowmg performance measures:

1.7.2.1. Progress toward the goals described in a individuals IEP;
- ) and/or

1.7.2.2. Progress toward the goals described in a individuals 504
Plan. :

1.7.3. The Contractor may be rfequired to prowde other data’and metrics to
the HHRTF CEQ or designeein a format specified by the Department

- 1.8. Background Checks

1.8.1. Prior to permitting “any individual to provide services "under this
Agreement, the Contractor must ensure that sald individual has
. undergone:

1.8.1.1. A criminal background check, at the Contractor's expense,
' and has no eonvictions for crimes that represent evidence
of behavior that could endanger individuals served under
this Agreement;

1.8.1.2. A name search of the Department's Bureau of Elderly and

‘ Adult Services (BEAS) State Registry, pursuant to. RSA’

161-F:49, with results indicating no evidence of behavior

- that could - endanger individuals served under this
Agreement; and

1.8.1.3." A name search of the Department's Division for Children,

Youth and ‘Families (DCYF) Central Registry pursuant to

RSA 169-C:35, with results indicating. no evidence of

- behavior that could endanger individuals served under this
Agreement.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor must manage ali confi dential data related to this Agreemept in
accordance ‘' with the .terms of Exhibit D, DHHS Informatlon é&gunty

$8-2025-HH-10-PHYSI-01 - 'B-2:0 Contractor [nitials
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Requwements

2.2. The Contractor must use and disclose Protected Health Information in
compliance ‘with the Standards-for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountablhty Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit E, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

3. Additional Terms S
3.1, Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

3.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expend|ture requirements under this Agreement.so as 1o achieve
compliance therewith.

3.2. Credits and Copyrlght Ownership X

3.2.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement must include the following statement, “The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an -
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and

. Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New.
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States. Department of Health and Human
Services.” :

3.2.2. Al matenals produced or purchased under the Agreement must have
prior approval from the Department before. printing, productlon
distribution or use.

3.2.3. The Department .m‘_us"t retain c":opyright ownership for any and a_II '
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

3.2.3.1. Brochures.
3.2.3.2. Resource directories,
, 3.23.3. [Protocols or guidelines.
3.2.3.4. - Posters..
- 3.2.3.5. Reports.

-3.2.4. The Contractor must not reproduce any m_ateriais produced under the
Agreement without prior'written approval from the Department.

4. Records . C
. 55-2025-HH-10-PHYSI-01 ' B20 - . Contractor Initials "~
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4.1.

42.

4.3.

§5-2025-HH-10-PHYSI-01 ‘ B2.0 ‘ Contractor Initials.
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412,

4.1.3.

4.1.4.

The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to:
411,

Books, records, doctiments and other electronic or physical data
ewdencmg and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract -and all income received

~or collected by the Contractor.

All récords must be malntalned in accordance with accountmg
procedures and-practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such

~ costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
o include, without limitation; all ledgers, books, records, and original

evidence of costs such as purchase.requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions

- labor-time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or: reqUIred by
- the Department. .

Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit recordsﬂ for each recipient of
services, which records must include all records of application, records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted. to the
Department to obtain. payment for such services. -

Medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

During the term of this Agreement and the perlod for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives must have access to. all reports and

records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,

examination, excerpts and transcripts.

if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department must disallow

any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder, the Department

- retains the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as

are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

5/28/2024
ate
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Pavment T'e[_ms

1. This Agreement is funded by:
11. 33.33% General Funds.
1.2, 66.67% Other Funds (Aéency Income).
2.  For the purposes of this Agreement the Departmeént has identified: _
2.1. The Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

3. Payment shall be for services provided in the fulfillment of this Agreenent, as
specified in Exhibit B Scope of Work, and in accordance with Table 1 below:

Position . Rate

P_h_ysibal Therapist. _ | $180 per 60 minute eeasion
Occupational Therapist ' $1 80 per 60 minute session
‘Speech Therapist . $1 80 per 60 [ninute session

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the

Departmeht no later than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the month following

~ the month in which the services were provided. The Contractor shall ensure
R each invoice:; .

4.1. Includes the Contractors Vendor Number issued upon: registering with
‘New Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

4.2. Is submitted in a form that is provided by or otherwise acceptable to the
Department.

* 4.3. Identifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in the
previous month. .

4.4. Includes supporting documentatlon of allowable costs with each invoice
' that may include, .but are not limited to, time sheets, payroll records,
receipts for purchases, and proof of expenditures, as applicable.

45. Is 'combleted, dated and returned to the Department with the supporting
documentation for allowable éxpenseés to initiate payment.

4.6. s assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation,
and is emalled to Shaun.E.Qualter@dhhs.nh. gov or mailed to:

Financial Manager :
Department-of Health and Human Services
218 East Road :
Hampstead NH 03841

§8-2025-HH-10-PHYSI-01 ) 2.1 . Contractor Initials . .
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The Department shall make payments to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each invoice and supporting documentation for authonzed
expenses, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice.

- The final invoice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses shall
be due fo the Department no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the Gerieral Provisions Form P-37, ¢hanges
limited to adjusting amourts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class,lines through the
Budget Office ‘may bé made by written agreement of both. parties, without
obtaining approval. of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

Audits

8.1.The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs act@dhhs nh.gov if
any of the following conditions exist:

8.1.1.  Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

8.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b.

8.1.3. Condition C - The Contractoris a public.company and required
: by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

8.2.  If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual Single
Audit performed by an independent Cettified Public Accountant (CPA)
to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov within 120 days after the close of the
Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the
requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform

" Administrative  Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
-Requirements for Federal awards.

8.2.1. The Contractor shall submit a copy of any Single Audit findings
and any associated corrective action plans. The Contractor
shall submit- quarterly progress reports. on the status of
implementation of the corrective action plan.

8.3.  If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by:an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

ps
: f (k
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8.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than
$250,000 from the Department during a single fiscal year, regardless
of the funding source, may be required, at a minimum, to submit annual
financial audits performed by an independent CPA upon request.

8.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Agreement, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Agreement to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

| - C
§5-2025-HH-10-PHYSI-01 c-2.1 _ Contractor Initials
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions
The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. “Breach” means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than authorized
purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable information,
whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health Information, “ Breach”
shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

2. “Computer Security Incident” shall have the same meaning “"Computer Security

) Incident” in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident

Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department of
Commerce.

3. “Confidential Information” or "Confidential Data” means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by -
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Depariment of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted services

- of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by state or
federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to Protected
Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial [nformation
(PF1), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN), Payment Card
Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. “End User’ means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives DHHS
data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. “HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and
the regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. ‘“Incident’ means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the Ioss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss

C
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or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized access,
use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network” means any network or segment of a network that is not
designated by the State of New Hampshire’s Department of Information Technology
or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and approved, by means of the
State, to transmit) will be considered an open network and not adequately secure for
the transmission of unencrypted PI, PEI, PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. ‘“Personal Information” {or “PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual’s identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 358-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. ‘“Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. “Protected Health Information” (or “PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of “Protected Health Information” in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 184, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard'that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed
or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by the
American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR
_ A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidentia! Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation -

of the Privacy and Security Rule.
Ds
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2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Informatlon in response to a request
. for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to.a subpoena, etc.,
- without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to consent or object to
- the disclosure. .

3. If DHHS ‘notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additichal
.restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in- violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Co'ntractor agrees thét DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract. :

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated.in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives of
DHHS for the purpose of mspectmg to confirm compliance with the- terms of this
Contract.

il. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA . -

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing Confidential = -
Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have been evaluated
by an expert knowledgeable in_cyber security and ‘that said appllcatlons encryptlon_n
capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet. ‘

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Dewces End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method. of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User-may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data'if email
is encrypted and being sent fo..and being received by email addresses of persons
authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employirig the Web to transmit Confidential Data, the
secure-socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be secure. SSL encrypts
data transmitted via a:Web site..

© 5. FileHosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file hosting
services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Stor‘age to transmit Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmlt Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit Confidential Data
said devices must be encrypted and password-protected. .

@
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10.

11.

Open Wireless Networks. 'End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when remotely
transmitting via an open wireless network.

Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to access
or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be installed on the End
User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be transmitted or accessed.

SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If End
User is employing -an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will structure the
Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information. SFTP
foiders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will be coded for 24-hour
auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24 hours).

Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data. via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any

" derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted under

this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A.

Retention

1. . The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this. Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabllltles and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place
to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems andlor
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information. '

4, The Contractor agrees to refain all electronic and hard copies of Confidentlai Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the I[atest anti-viral,
antihacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The envircnment, as
a whole, must have aggressive infrusion-detection and firewall protection.

C |
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6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State’s
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any secunty vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. Ifthe Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its sub-
contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for securely
disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will obtain written
certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the Contractor or
any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster recovery
operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of New
Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program in
accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, degaussing)
as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines for Media
Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S. Department of
Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at time of the data
destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department upon request.
The written certification will include all details necessary to demonstrate data has
been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable, regulatory and
professional standards for retention requirements will be Jomtly evaluated by the
State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this Contract,
Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a secure
method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this Contract,
Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data by means
of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under thisAContract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department confidential
information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery of contracted
services. ‘

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department confidential
information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from creation,
transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the media used to

store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
DS
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10.

1.

The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to detect
potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or Department
confidential information for contractor provided systems.

The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End Users
in support of protecting Department confidential information.

If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security expectations,
and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum match those for
the Contractor, including breach notification reguirements.

The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies and
procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of obtaining
and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be completed
and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to system access
heing authorized.

If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsmle for malntamlng compliance with the
agreement.

The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless prior
express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office leadership

" member within the Department.

Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall make
efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to prevent

C
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12

13.

14.

15.

16.

future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach. The State
shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to the
breach. :

Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects maintain
the privacy and security of Pl and PHI at a level and scope that is not less than the level
and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including, but not limited to,
provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS Privacy Act Regulations
(45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that
govern protections for individually identifiable heaith information and as applicable
under State law.

Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to prevent
unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and scope of
security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements established
by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology. Refer to
Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://iwww.nh.gov/doit/vendorfindex.htm for the
Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information rejating to vendors.

Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident response
process. The Contractor will notify the State’s Privacy Officer and the State's Security
Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses provided in Section
VI, This includes a confidential information breach, computer security incident, or
suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that
connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this Contract
to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to perform their official
duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above, implemented
to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS under this Contract
from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.
c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or

PFI are encrypted and password-protected.
@
Contractor Initials
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d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being sent
to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to receive such
information. '

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually identifiable
data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is physically and
technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons during duty hours
as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys, biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when stored
on portable media as required in section |V above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and disclosed
using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based assessment of the
circumstances involved. ‘

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through a
third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users, DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this Contract,
including the privacy and security requifements provided in herein, HIPAA, and other
applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data is disposed
of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must ﬁotify the State’s Privacy Officer and Security Cfficer of any Security
Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency’'s documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. [n addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations arid procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will;

1. Identify Incidents;
2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;
3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

Ci
Contractor Initials .
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4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents and
determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate Breach
notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different options, and
bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate Pl must be addressed and reported, as applicable,
in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT
A. DHHS Privacy Officer:
DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov B.
DHHS Security Officer:
' IDHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

C |
Contractor Initials

V5, Last update 10/09/18 5/28/2024
e

Page 9 of 9 ’ ‘ Dat



DocuSign Envelope ID: 320D569A-FBSE-421C-B5B4-DO02BEES3116
{

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human
' Exhibit E

ES GREEME

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement (Form P-37)
(“Agreement”), and any of its agents who receive use or have access to protected health
information (PHI), as defined herein, shall be referred to as the “Business Associate.” The State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, "Department” shall be referred
to as the "Covered Entity,” The Contractor and the Department are collectively referred to as “the
parties.”

The parties agree, to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public
Law 104-191, the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162, and 164 (HIPAA), provisions of the HITECH Act, Title XIlI,
-Subtitle D, Parts 182 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, 42 USC 17934,
et sec., applicable to business associates, and as applicable, to be bound by the provisions of
the Confidentiality of Substance Use Disorder Patient Records, 42 USC s. 290 dd-2, 42 CFR Part
2, (Part 2), as any of these laws and regulations may be amended from time to time.

(1)  Definitions

a. Thefollowing terms shall have the same meaning as defined in HIPAA, the HITECH
Act, and Part 2, as they may be amended from time to time:

“Breach,” “Designated Record Set,” “Data Aggregation,” Designated Record
Set,” "Health Care Operations,” “HITECH Act” “Individual,” “Privacy Rule,”
“Required by law,” “Security Rule,” and “Secretary.”

b. Business Associate Agreement, (BAA) means the Business Associate Agreement
that includes privacy and confidentiality requirements of the Business Associate
working with PHI and as applicable, Part 2 record(s) on behalf of the Covered Entity
under the Agreement.

c. “Constructively Identifiable,” means there is a reasonable basis to believe that the
information could be used, alone or in combination with other reasonably available
information, by an anticipated recipient to identify an individual who is a subject of
the information.

d.  “Protected Health Information” ("PHI") as used in the Agreement and the BAA,
means protected health information defined in HIPAA 45 CFR-160.103, limited to
the information created, received, or used by Business Associate from or on behalf
of Covered Entity, and includes any Part 2 records, if applicable, as defined below.

e. "Part 2 record” means any patient “Record,” relating to a "Patient,” and "Patient
Identifying Information,” as defined in 42 CFR Part 2.11.

f. *Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that
is not secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredlted
by the American National Standards Institute.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain, store, or transmit Protected
Health Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services
outlined under the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including bts‘mt

Exhibit E
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limited to all its directors, officers, employees, and .agents, shall protect any PHI as
required by HIPPA and 42 CFR Part 2, and not use, disclose, maintain, store, -or
transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of HIPAA or 42 CFR-
Part 2.

b. Business Associate'm_ay use or disclose PHI, as appliaable:
[.  For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
Il.  Asrequired by law, according '_:o' the terms set forth in paragraph ¢. and d. below;
1. According to the HIPAA minimum necessary standard;

IV. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operatlons of the Covered
Entity; and

. V. Data that is de-identified or aggregated and remains constructively identifiable
> ' may not be used for any purpose outside the performance of the Agreement.

c.  To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the BAA or the Agreement to
disclose PHI to any third party or subcontractor prior to making any disclosure, the
Business Associate must obtain, a business associate agreement or other
agreement with the ‘third party or subcontractor, that complies with HIPAA and
ensures that all requirements and restrictions placed on the Business Associate as
part of this BAA with the Covered Entity, are included in those business associate
agreements with the third party or subcontractor.

d. The Business Associate shall not, disclose any PHI in response to a request or
demand for disclosure, such as by a subpoena or court order, on the basis that it
is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity can
determine how to best protect the PHI. If Covered Entity objects to the disclosure,
the Business Associate agrees to refrain from disclosing the PHI and shall
cooperate with the Covered Entity in any effort the Covered Entity undertakes to
contest the request for disclosure, subpoena, or other legal process. If applicable
relating to Part 2 records, the Business Associate shall resist any efforts to access
part 2 records in any judicial proceeding.

(3)  Obligations and Activities of Business Associate

a. Business Associate shall implement appropriate safeguards to prevent
unauthorized use or disclosure of all PHI in accordance with HIPAA Privacy Rule
and Security Rule with regard to electronic PHI, and Part 2, as applicable.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy
Officer at the following email. address, DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov “after the
Business Associate has determined that any usé or disclosure not provided for by
its contract, including any known or suspected privacy or security incident or breach
has occurred potentially exposing or compromising the PHI. This includes
inadvertent or accidental uses or disclosures or breaches of unsecured protected
health information. -

¢. Intheeventofa breach, the Business Associate shall comply with the terms of this
Business Associate Agreement, all applicable state and federal laws and
regulations and any additional requirements of the Agreement. -

d.  The Business Associate shall perform a risk assessment, based on the information
available at the time:-it becomes aware of any known or suspected priinJr
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n,

secunty breach as described above and communlcate the: rlsk assessment to the
Covered Entity. The risk assessment shall include, but not be limited to:

. The nature and extent of the protected health information lnvolved including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

Il. The unauthorized person who accessed, used, disclosed, or received the
protected health information; :

Ill. Whether the protected health information was actually acquired-or viewed; and’

IV. How the risk of loss of confidentiality to the protected health information
+hasbeen mltlgated

e.  The Business Associate shall complete a risk assessment report at the conclusion

‘ ‘of its incident or breach investigation and provide the findings in a written report to
the Covered Entity as soon.as practicable after the conclusion of the Business
Associate's investigation.-

f.  Business Associate shall make available.all of its internal policies-and procedures,
books and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or
created or received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the -
US. Secretary of Health and Human Services for purposes of determining the
Business Associate’s and the Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the
anacy and Security Rule, and Part 2, if applicable. '

g. Buslness Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or
have "access to PHI under the BAA to agree in writing to adhere to the same
“restrictions and-conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein.

h.  Within ten (10). business days of receipt of a written request.-from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business-hours at its offices -
all records; books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use‘and
disclosure of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to

. determine Business Assomates compliance with the terms of the BAA and the

: Agreement

i. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entlty,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record: Set to the’
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity; to an individual in order'to meet
the requrrements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

- Within. ten (10).business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for
an amendment of PHI or .a record about an individual contained in a Designated
Record Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered
Entity for amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered
Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

K. Business Associate shall document any disclosures of PHI and information related

' to any disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request
+ by anindividual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
- Section 164.528.

. Within ten (10) business days-of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for
a request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make
available to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill
its obligations te provide an accountlng of disclosures wrth respect to f?t“s’m
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accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

m. Inthe event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within five (5)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have

- the responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual’s request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business
Associate shall instead respond to the individual’s request as required by such law
and notify Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

n.  Within thirty (30) -business days- of termination of the Agreement, for any reason,
the Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all
PHI received from or created or received by the Business Associate in connection
with the Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-ups of such PHI in any
form or platform.

VI.  If return or destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PH| has been
otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, or if retention is governed by state -
or federal law, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections
of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such
PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible for as
long as the Business Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its
sole discretion, requires that the Business Associate destroy any or all PHI,
the Business Associate shall certify to Covered Entity that the PHI has been:
destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall post a current version of the Notice of the Privacy Practices
on the Covered Entity's website:

https://www.dhhs.nh.gov/oos/hipaa/publications.htm in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.520.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or
revocation of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may -
be used or disclosed by Business Associate under this BAA, pursuant to 45 CFR

‘ Section 164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c.  Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the
use or disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45
CFR 164.522, to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

(5) Termination of Aareement for Cause

a.  In addition to the General Provisions (P-37) of the Agreement, the Covered Entity
may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered Entity’s knowledge of a
material breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate Agreement. The
Covered Entity' may either immediatély terminate the Agreement or provide an
opportunity for Business Associate to cure the alleged breach within a timeframe
specified by Covered Entity.

(6) Miscellaneous

a.  Definitions, Laws, and Regulatory References. All laws and regulatlons[u Ed.
: Exhibit E
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herein, shall refer to those laws and regulations as amended from time to time. A
reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Business Associate
Agreement, to a Section in HIPAA or 42 Part 2, means the Section as in effect or
as amended.

b. -Change in law - Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action
as is necessary from time to time for the Covered Entity and/or Business Associate
to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, 42 CFR Part 2 other
applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership - The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership
rights with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation - The parties agree that any ambiguity in the BAA and the
Agreement shall be resolved to permit Covered Entity and the Business Associate
to comply with HIPAA and 42 CFR Part 2.

e. Segregation - If any term or condition of this BAA or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms
or conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this
end the terms and conditions of this BAA are declared severable.

f.  Survival - Provisions in this BAA regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return
or destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the BAA in section (3) g. and ~
(3) n.l., and the defense and indemnification provisions of the General Provisions
(P-37) of the Agreement, shall survive the termination of the BAA.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Business Associate
Agreement.

Department of Health and Human Services Easterseals NH, VT and Farnum

The State : Name of the Contractor
DocuSigned by; DocuSlgne.d by:
[—jusﬁw M. {soser atloring. budun
1€BFQH—4'}I:Q1AAR-“ umnn?cnnﬂnm -
Signature of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative
Justin M. Looser Catherine Kuhn
Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative
CEQ C00, Programs
Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative
5/29/2024 5/28/2024

Date Date bs
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that EASTER SEALS NEW
HAMPSHIRE, INC. is.a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on November
06, 1967. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office-have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office i5 concerned,

Business [D: 61290
Certificate Number: 0006194169

IN TESTIMONY WHER'EOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 3rd day of April A.D. 2023,

" David M. Scanfan

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, __ Cynthia Ross , hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. l am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of __Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc., which includes Manchester
Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center, a program of Easterseals NH.
{Gorporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on _October 11,2023 , at which a quorum of the Directors/sharehelders were present and voting.
{Date)

VOTED: That Maureen Beaureqgard, President & CEQ; Catherine Kuhn, Chief Operating Officer: Tina Sharby. Chief
Human Rescurces Officer; Peter Hastings, Chief Information Qfficer: Pameia Hawkes, Chief Development Officer;
Michele Talwani. SVP Marketing & Communications and Bradford E. Cook, General Counsel of the corporation,
(may list more than one person) :

(Name and Title of Contract Signatery)

are duly authorized on behalf of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Manchester Alcoholism Rehabilitation
Center to enter into contracts or agreements with the State

{(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all documents,
agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her
judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpese. of this vote.

3. | hereby ceriify that said vote has not been amended or repealed arid remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is.attached. This authority remains valid for thirty
(30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. | further certify that it is understood that the State of New
Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s)
indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the
authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshlre all such
limitations are expressly stated herein. /L@
Dated: May 28th, 2024 ﬁw’) ¢ 75 83

g Slgna'ture of Electeg’Officer

Name: Cynthia Rdss
Title:  Assistant Secretary

Rev. 10/11/2023
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ACORD. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE B il

81712023

" THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLIGIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER{(S), AUTHORIZED .
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an.endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder in lleu of such endorsement{s).

| PRODUCER . . GONIACT Linda Jaeger, CIC
usli lnsutance Serw::es LLF: fNHgNNo Exty; 855 874-0123 ° m’é' No):
3 E;ec:h;ilP:;I: Drive, Suite 300 EMAL . linda jaeger@usi.com
Bedford, 10 INSURER(S) AFFORDING GOVERAGE NAIC &
855 874-0123 INSURER A ; Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Co. 18058 .
INSURED : ) : INSURER B : \ . .
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
INSURER C :
555 Auburn Street -
INSURER D :
Manchester, NH 03103
_ INSURER E :
7 ' INSURERF :
COVERAGES ) CERTIFICATE NUMBER: + REVISION NUMBER: -

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES QF INSURANCE LISTED BELQW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM CR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE- MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS 'SUBJECT 7O ALL THE TERMS,
EXGLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

i ___TYPE OF INSURANCE AR (WA | POLICY NUMBER (DB YY) |(MDBN L) LIMITS
A | X| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY X | X [PHPK2592749 09/01/2023 | 09/01/2024] EACH OCCURRENGE $1,000,000
} CLAIMS-MADE QCCUR PRMARE T G cey | $100,000
|_X| Professional Liab MED EXP (Any one person) | $5,000
i PERSONAL& ADV INJURY | 51,000,000
EN'LAGGREGATE LiMIT APPLIES PER: : GENERAL AGGREGATE . | $3,000,000
|| roucy I:’ ERO IZI Loc PRODUGTS - COMPIOP AGE | $3,000,000
OTHER: hd
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY X | X |PHPK2592747 09/01/2023 | 09/01/2024) ' ebeny " o-EUMIT 1 41,000,000
Xi any auto BOQDILY INJURY (Perpersan) | &
[ | SRy SREDULED -+ | BODILY INJURY (Per acoldant) | $
x| HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE %
| A AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY {Per accident)
$
A | X|UMBRELLALIAB | X | GCEUR X | X |PHUBB78203 09/01/2023|09/01/2024] EACH OCCURRENCE 510,000,000
EXCESSLIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $10,000,000
DED | Xl ReTENTION$$ 10K
AND EMPLOYERS: LIABILITY [ s
Ny EE%WE‘TB%QEQF&T_[\:JEWEXECUTNED NIA E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $
{Mandatory (n NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| $
If yes; describe under . -
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below ' . | EL-DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT. [ $
A |EDP PHPK2592749 09/01/2023|09/01/2024 $1,619,050
Special Form Incl Theft
$500 Deductible

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LO;:ATIONS # VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Addltional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if maore space is required)
Supplemental Names*:Easter Seals ME, Inc., Manchester Alcohol Rehabilitation Center, Inc., dba The Farnum

Center, Easter Seals VT, Inc.,*. The General Liability policy includes a Blanket Automatic Additional

Insured Endorsement that provides Additional Insured and a Blanket Waiver of Subrogation status to the
Certificate Holder, only when there is a written contract or written agreement between the Named Insured
and the Certificate Holder that requires such status, and only with regard to the above referenced on behalf
(See Attached Descriptions)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

Devartment of Health & H SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

epariment ot Rea uman THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

Services, State of NH ACCORDANCE WITH THE PQLICY PROVISIONS.

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

l ‘ TP D fp
© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

ACORD 25 (2016/03) 1 of 2 The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

#541188776/M41178900 sK2zp
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l ® - DATE {(MM/DDIYYYY,
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 1}5,2024 ’

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS I[SSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS-UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

°| PRODUCER ﬁgﬁ?“ Patricia MacDonald
Hays Companies, Inc. PHONE rx Nol:
980 Washington St., Suite 325 EMAL s Patricia.Macdonald@bbrown.com
INSURER{S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Dedham MA 02026 INSURER A: The North River Insurance Company 21105
INSURED INSURER B : )
Eastexr Seals New Hampshire,Inc INSURER C :
555 Auburn Street JNSURER D :
INSURERE
Manchester NH 03103 ) ANSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:24-25 WC REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE PQLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIQOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OGTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN 18 SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH PCLICIES, LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
TNSR ADDL [SUBR FOLICY EFF_ | POLICY EXP
TTR TYPE OF INSURANCE s [wvp POLICY NUMBER (MMDDYYYY) | (MMDDINYYYY LIMITS
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY ; EACH OCCURRENCE 5
DAWMAGE TO RENTED
CLAIMS-MADE l:l OCCUR PREMISES (Fa occurrence) 5
I MED EXP {Any ong person) $
PERSONAL & ADY INJURY $
GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APFLIES PER: GENERALAGGREGATE $
POLICY B Loc PRODUCTS - COMPIOPAGG | §
OTHER: $
AUTCMOBILE LIABILITY CjE ity e LM $
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
ﬁb‘:rgg‘fNED gﬁ;*ggU'-ED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | §
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (Per accident)
$
UMERELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE 3
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
DED | | RETENTION § $
WORKERS COMPENSATION X | BER QTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY vIN Starure | [ &R
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 1,000,000
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? D NIA
A |{mandatory In NH) 406-740231-9 1/1/2024 1/1/2025 | L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE | § 1,000,000
if yes, describe under : "
DESCRIPTIGN OF GPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICYLIMIT | & 1,000,000

Evidence of Insurance

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS 7 LOCATIONS [ YEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if mere space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

State of NH

Dept. of Health & Human Services
129 Pleasant St.

Concord, NH 03301

|

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREQF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.,

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

James Hays/TADRIG

G

ACORD 25 (2014/01)
INS025 (201401)

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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“Mission Statement:

To provide plans of care comprised of thoughtfully w
integrated services that help those with varied abilities live,

fearn, work and play throughout their lifetimes.

4

d 555 Auburn Street - Manchester, NH 03103 + 603.623.8863
easterseals.com/nh
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E!BA KER ) ' Baker Newman & Noyes LLC
JE\/ M 7 MAINE | MASSACHUSETTS | NEW HAMPSHIRE
800.244.7444 | www.bnncpa.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Directors
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries
(Easter Seals NH), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of August 31, 2022 and
2021, and the related consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses and
cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements (collectively,
the financial statements).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Easter Seals NH as of August 31, 2022 and 2021, and the changes in their net assets, functional
expenses and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Easter Seals NH and to meet our other -
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe
_that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

- Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Easter Seals NH’s ability to continue as

a going concern for a period of within one year after the date that the financial statements are issued or available.
to be issued.
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Board of Directors .
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

" Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

»  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
~ fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures

include examining, on a test basis, evidence regardmg the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

o Obtain an understanding of internal.control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Easter Seals NH’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness' of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

¢  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about Easter Seals NH’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit ﬁndmgs and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.

Other Financial Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as
a whole. The accompanying other financial information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and
is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements, The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of
the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or
to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all
materijal respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.
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Board of Directors
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 20, 2022
on our consideration of Easter Seals NH’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, coritracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Easter Seals
NH’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Easter Seals NH’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

A

BLKer Newman% No es 1VC

Manchester, New Hampshire
December 20, 2022
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

1
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

August 31, 2022 and 2021

022 2021
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalénts $14,837,761 $14,389,013
Restricted cash ' \ 79,819 82,461
Short-term investments, at fair value 10,055,639 10,681,421
Accounts receivable from related entity 394,316 -
Program and other accounts receivable 9,748,641 8,593,338
Contributions receivable, net 172,253 224,865
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 507.909 633.702
Total current assets 36,196,338 34,604,300
Assets limited as to use 1,837,445 12,357,939
Investments, at fair value 13,419,355 15,889,181
Investment in related entity 1,742 -
Other assets 349,154 378,877
Fixed assets, net 27216243 29,899,301
$79.020.277 $83.130,598
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 2,538,018 § 2,312,551
Accrued expenses 6,450,559 6,895,135
Deferred revenue 4,598.645 1,862,583
Current portion of interest rate-swap agreement 579,174 387,067
Current portion of long-term debt 1,016,962 1,222,914
Total current liabilities 15,183,358 12,680,250
Other liabilities 2,130,322 2,682,812
Interest rate swap agreement, less current portion 416,010 1,851,184 -
Long-term debt, less current portion, net: 17.861.006 28,771,371
Total liabilities 35,590,696 45,985,617
Net assets:
Without donor restrictions 37,450,866 31,026,464
With donor restrictions 5.978.715 6.118,517
Total net assets 43,429,581 . 37.144.981
$79,020,277 $83,130.598

See accompanying notes.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Year Ended August 31, 2022

Without With
Deanor Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total
Public support and revenue:
Public support:
Contributions, net $ 764,760 3 368,967 $§ 1,133,727
Special events, net of related
direct costs of $1,018,200 1,891,609 83,710 1,975,319
Annual campaigns, net of related .
direct costs of $43,900 232,664 16,362 249,026
Bequests 4,160 — 4,160
Net assets released from restrictions 449,927 (449.927) -
Total public support 3,343,120 19,112 3,362,232
Revenue:
Fees and tuition 61,914,620 - 61,914,620
Grants 31,630,150 - "31,630,150
(Gain on extinguishment of debt 9,250,000 - 9,250,000
Dividend and interest income 834,614 12,543 847,157
Rental income 31,762 - 31,762
Other 394,652 - 394,652
Total revenue 104.055,798 12,543 104.068.341
Total public support and revenue 107,398,918 31,655 107,430,573
Operating expenses:
Program services: _
Public health education 26,267 - 26,267
Professional education 160,997 - 160,997
Direct services 85.247.641 — 85,247,641
Total program services 85,434,905 - 85,434,905
Supporting services: :
Management and general / 9,493,211 - 9,493,211
Fundraising 2,154,599 - 2,154,599
Total supporting services 11,647.810 — 11.647.810
Total functional expenses 97,082,715 - 97,082,715
Support of National programs 130.276 - 130.276
Total operating expenses 97.212.991 - 97,212,991
Increase in net assets from operations 10,185,927 10,217,582
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended August 31, 2022

Without With
Donor Donor
. Restrictions  Restrictions Total
Other non-operating expenses, gains and losses:
Change in fair value of interest rate swap $ 1,243,067 $ - $ 1,243,067
“Net unrealized and realized losses on
investments, net (3,063,497) - (182,735)  (3,246,232)
Increase in fair value of beneficial
interest in trust held by others - 11,278 11,278
Loss on sales, disposals and impairment - -
of fixed assets (1.541,095) - (1.941,095)
(3.761,525) _(171.457) (3.932,982)
~ Increase (decrease)} in net assets | 6,424,402 (139,802) 6,284,600
Net assets at beginning of year , o 31026464 6118517  37.144.981
Net assets at end of year . $37,450.866 § g' 978,715 $43,429.581

See accompanying notes.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Year Ended August 31, 2021

Public support and revenue:
Public support:

Contributions, net

Special events, net of related -
direct costs of $643,937

Annual campaigns, net of related
direct costs of $42,502

Bequests

Net assets released from restrictions

Total public support

Revenue:

Fees and tuition

Grants

Dividend and interest income
Rental income

Other

Total revenue

Total public support and revenue

Operating expenses:
Program services:

Public health education
Professional education
Direct services

Total program services

Supporting services:

Management and general
Fundraising

Total supporting services
Total functional expenses
Support of National programs

Total operating expenses

Increase (decrease) in net assets from operations

Without With
Donor Domnor
Restrictions  Restrictions Total

$ 732,689 $ 327,971 $ 1,060,660
L171,144 308832 1,379,976
418,831 37,458 456,289
4,091 - 4,091

837.627 (837.627) -
3,164,382  (263366) 2,901,016
60,020,761 — 60,020,761
33,096,374 — 33,096,374
625,522 8,878 634,400
29,775 - 29,775
549.546 - 549,546
94.321,978 _8.878 94,330,856
97,486,360 (254,488) 97,231,872
42,458 - 42,458
3,192 - 3,192
82.595.976 — 82,5_95,976
82,641,626 - 82,641,626
9,427,520 — 9,427,520
1,249,556 — 1,249,556
10,677.076 — 10.677.076
93,318,702 - 93,318,702
105,185 — 105.185
93,423,887 — 93.423,887
4,062,473 (254,488) 3,807,985
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Year Ended August 31, 2021

Other non-operating expenses, gains and losses:
Change in fair value of interest rate swap
Net unrealized and realized gains on
investments, net
Decrease in fair value of beneficial
interest in trust held by others
Loss on sales and disposals of fixed assets
Contribution of net assets from acquisition — see Note 15

Total increase (decrease) in net assets
Net assets at beginning of year

Net assets at end of year

See accompanying notes.

Without With

Donor Donor

Restrictions  Restrictions Total
$ 658,823 § - $ 658,823

1,830,767 201,783 2,032,550

- (696) (696)
(40,958) - (40,958)
702,572 - 702,572

3.151.204 201,087 3,352,291

7,213,677 (53,401) 7,160,276

23,812,787 6171918  29.984.705

$31,026464 $6,118517 $37,144981 -
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
Year Ended August 31, 2022

Total Program !
and Supporting

Program Services ' Supporting Services Services Expenses
Public Profes- Manage- '
Health sional Direct ment and Fund-
Education Education Services Total General Raising . Total 2022 2021

Salaries and related expenses § 5780 §% - $65,741,230 $65,747,010 $6,336,634 $1,061,221 § 7,397,855 73,144,865 $71,102,855
Professional fees 2,613 127,466 8,234,642 8,364,721 2,066,017 335,013 2,401,030 10,765,751 10,125,183
Supplies 928 5,500 1,777,921 1,784,349 50,158 33,284 83,442 1,867,791 2,160,860
Telephone 8 - 529,613 529,621 200,186 2,696 202,882 732,503 699,817
Postage and shipping - 229 35,031 35,260 15,776 10,447 26,223 61,483 - 52,684
Occupancy - — 2,472,697 2,472,697 354,406 58,116 412,522 2,885,219 2,798,022
Outside printing, artwork and media 1,303 - 8,519 9,822 309 37,569 37,878 47,700 20,999
Travel - - 1,540,938 1,540,938 13,280 - 864 14,144 1,555,082 1,250,785
Conventions and meetings 6 27,802 98,989 126,797 15,852 22,425 38,277 1 165,074 77,801
Specific assistance to individuals - - 1,786,297 1,786,297 556 - 556 1,786,853 1,379,563
Dues and subscriptions ‘ - - 17,296 17,296 11,084 955 12,039 29,335 43,126
Minor equipment purchases : ‘

and equipment rentals 7,926 - 136,235 144,161 74,508 33,003 107,511 251,672 316,808
Ads, fees and miscellaneous 7,703 — 413,578 421,281 31,740 552,377 584,117 1,005,398 388,306
Interest } - — 642,590 642,590 137,563 - 137,563 780,153 908,999
Depreciation and amortization = = 1,812,065 1.812.065 185,142 6,629 191,771 2.003.836 1.992.894

$26267 $160,997 $85.247.641 $85.434,905 $9.493211 $2,154.599 $11,647.810 97,082,715 $93,318.702

0.03% 0.16% 87.81% 88.00% 9.78% 2.22% 12.00% 100.00% 100.00%

See accompanying notes.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES °
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES-

Year Ended August 31, 2021

Total Program
and Supporting
‘Program Services Supporting Setvices Services Expenses
Public - Profes- Manage-
Health sional Direct ment and Fund-
Education  Education Services Total = ._General Raising Total 2021
Salaries and related expenses $ 11,096 $ - $64,176,399 $64,187.495 $6,044992 § 870,368 § 6,915,360 371,102,855
Professional fees . 17,291 - 7,842,755 7,860,046 2,100,809 164,328 2,265,137 10,125,183
Supplies ) 790 - 1,989,877 1,990,667 131,147 . 39,046 170,193 2,160,860
Telephone - - 513,962 513,962 184,045 1,810 185,855 699,817
Postage and shipping - - 25,110 25,110 19,618 7,956 27,574 52,684
Occupancy ' - - 2,389,582 2,389,582 338,318 70,122 408,440, 2,798,022
Qutside printing, artwork and media 5,090 - 4,927 10,017 5,130 5,852 10,982 20,999
Travel . 7 - 1,236,068 1,236,075 13,024 1,686 14,710 1,250,785
Conventions and meetings L= 3,192 55,272 58,464 16,905 2,432 19,337 77,801
Specific assistance to individuals - - 1,379,455 1,379,455 108 - 108 . 1,379,563
Dues and subscriptions - - 25,725 25,725 13,398 4,003 17,401 43,126
Minor equipment purchases ‘ .

) and equipment rentals 775 - 153,295 154,070 158,601 4,137 162,738 316,808
Ads, fees and miscellaneous 7,409 - 222,711 230,120 84,777 73,409 158,186 388,306
Interest - - 764,208 764,208 144,791 - 144,791 908,999
Depreciation and amortization — - 1,816,630 1,816,630 171,857 4,407 176,264 1,992,854

$_42.458 $.3,192 $82.595976 $82,641,626 $9.427.520 $1.249.556 $10,677.076 $93,318.702

0.05%: " 0.00% 88.51% 88.56% 10.10% 1.34% 11.44% 100.00%

See accompanying notes.
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.EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES,

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended August 31, 2022 and 2021

[

Cash flows from operating activities:
Increase in net assets -
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Bond issuance costs amortization

(Increase) decrease in fair value of beneficial
interest in trust held by others

Net loss on sales, disposals and impairment of fixed assets

Change in fair value of interest rate swap

~ Gain on extinguishment of debt
" Gain on conversion of long-term debt to grant revenue

Net unrealized and realized losses (gains) on investments, net

Donor restricted contributions

Contribution of net assets from acquisition

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Program arid other accounts receivable
Accounts receivable from related entity
Contributions receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Other assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred revenue
Other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Casgh flows from investing activities:
Purchases of fixed assets
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
Change in investments, net
Change in assets limited as to use
Investment in related entity
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash

acquired from acquisition

Net cash used by investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayment of long-term debt
Proceeds from long-term debt

Donor restricted contributions

Net cash (used) provided by financing activities

11

2022

2021

$ 6,284,600 $ 7,160,276

(1,872,427)

2,003,836 1,992,894
6,110 " 6,110
(11,278) - 696
1,941,095 40,958
(1,243,067) (658,823)
(9,250,000) -
- (1,140,000)
3,246,232 (2,032,550}
(368,967) (327,971)
- (702,572)
(1,155,303) 706,473
(394,316) -
52,612 - 105,080
(274,207) 77,756
41,001 © 16,437
(392,927) 22,693
2,736,062 496,622
(552.490) 191374
2,668,993 5955453
. (1,453,563)  (2,184,030)
366,008 20,323
(150,624)  (7,132,124)
520,494 (203,417)
(1,742) -
- 365413
© (719,427)  (9,133,835)

(1,074,073)

- 10,161,364
368,967 327,971
(1,503,460) _9.415.262
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC: AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH.FLOWS (CONTINUED)

Years Ended August 31, 2022 and 2021

202 2021

Increase in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash $ 446,106 § 6,236,880
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of year © 14471474 8,234,594
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of year 314,917,580 514.471,474
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informat’ion:

Interest paid $__ 742000 $_ 875,000
Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities: _ .

Fixed asset purchases included in accounts payable at end of year 5__173818 % -

See accompanying notes.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31,2022 and 2021

1. Corporate Organization and Purpose

Easter Seals New Hampshiire, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Easter Seals NH) consists of various separate
nonprofit entitics: Easter Seals. New Hampshire, Inc. (parent and service corporation); Manchester
Alcoholism Rehabilitation Center (Farnum Center); Easter Seals Maine, Inc.(up to August 31,2022); and
Easter Seals Vermont, Inc. (Easter Seals VT). Additionally, Champlin Place, Inc., was formed on
June 30, 2022 and is 100% owned by Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. Champlin Place, Inc. is the sole
General Partner of Champlin Place Limited Partnership (the Partnership). Champlin Place, Inc. has a
0.01% ownership interest in the Partnership, but oversees certain management and operational aspects of
the Partnership subject to the terms set forth in the limited partnership agreement. See note 16. Easter
Seals New Hampshire, Inc. is the sole member of each sub51d1ary Easter Seals NH is affiliated with
Easter Seals, Inc. (the natxonal headquarters for the organization).

Effective August 31, 2022, Faster Seals Maine, Inc. was dissolved, and all assets were transferred to )
Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.

Easter Seals NH’s purpose is to provide plans of care comprised of thoughtfuily integrated services that

help those with varied abilities live, learn, work, and play throughout their lifetimes. Easter Seals NH
operates programs throughout New Hampshire and Vermont.

2.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

o

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and the,
subsidiaries of which it is the sole member as described in note 1. Significant intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

Easter Seals NH considers all highly liquid securities pufchased with an original maturity of 90 days or
less to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents consist of cash, and money market funds, excluding assets
limited as to use.

Easter Seals NH maintains its cash and cash equivalents in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may
exceed amounts guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. Financial instruments which
subject Easter Seals NH to credit risk consist primarily of cash equivalents and investments. -Easter Seals
NH’s investment portfolio consists of diversified investments, which are subject to market risk.
Investments that exceeded 10% of investments include the Lord Abbett Short Duration Income A Fund
with a balance of $10,055,500 and $9,677,021 as of August 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Restricted cash represents reserve accounts held by New Hampshire Hoﬁsing Finance Authority

(NHHFA) for insurance, taxes, replacement costs and operations as well as security deposit accounts held
for tenants.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2022 and 2021

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash reported
within the consolidated statements of financial position that sum to the total of the same such amounts
shown in the consolidated statements of cash flows at August 31:

022 2021
Cash and cash equivalents . $14,837.761 '$14,389,013

Restricted cash 79.819 82.461

$14,917.580 $14,471.474

Assets Limited as to Use and Investments

Assets limited as to use consists of cash and cash equivalents, short-term certificates of deposit with
original maturities greater than 90 days, but less than one year, and investments. Investments are stated
at fair value. Realized gains and losses on investments are computed on a specific identification basis.
The changes in net unrealized and realized gains and losses on investments are recorded in other non-
operating expenses, gains and losses in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities and
changes in net assets. Donated securities are stated at fair value determined at the date of donation.

Beneficial Interest in Trust

Easter Seals NII is the beneficiary of a trust held by others recorded in other assets in the accompanying
consolidated statements of financial position. Easter Seals NH has recorded as an asset the fair value of
its interest in the trust and such amount is included in net assets with donor restrictions, based on the
underlying donor-stipulations. The.change in the interest due to fair value change is recorded within other
non-operating expenses, gains and losses as activity with donor restrictions.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Expenditures for
maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred, and expenditures for major renovations are
capitalized. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
underlying assets. Leaschold improvements are amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter
of the lease term or the estimated useful life of the asset.

Fixed assets obtained by Easter Seals NH as a result of acquisitions on or after September 1, 2011 are
recorded at estimated fair value as of the date of the acquisition in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles guidance for acquisitions by a not-for-profit entity.

Donated property and equipment not subject to donor stipulated conditions is recorded at fair value at the
date of donation. If donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded as
restricted support or, if significant uncertainties exist, as deferred revenue pending resolution of the
uncertainties. In the absence of such stipulations, contributions of property and equipment are recorded
as support without donor restrictions. See also note 8.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aungust 31, 2022 and 2021

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) .

Long-Lived Assets

‘When there is an indication of impairment, management considers whether long-lived assets are impaired

by comparing gross future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated from utilizing the assets to
their carrying amounts. If cash flows are not sufficient to recover the carrying amount of the assets,
impairment has occurred, and the assets are written down to their fair value. Significant estimates and
assumptions are required to be made by management in order to evaluate possible impairment..

Certain long-lived assets were deemed impaired in 2022. See note 8. No long-lived assets were deemed
impaired at August 31, 2021.

Bond Issuance Costs

Bond issuance costs are being amortized to interest expense using the straight-line. method over the
repayment period of the rélated bonds, or the expected time uatil the next refinancing, whichever is
shorter. Interest expense recognized on the amortization of bond issuance costs during 2022 and 2021
was $6,110. The bond issuance costs are: presented as a component of long-term debt on the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial position.

Revenue Recognition and Program and Other Accounts Receivable

Easter Seals NH accounts for revenues (mainly relating to fees and tuition in the accompanying
consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets) under Accounting Standards Codification
(ASC) 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, and determines the amount of revenue to be
recognized through application of the’ following steps:

Identification ofthe contract with a customer;

Identification of the performance obligations in the contract;

Determination of the transaction price;

Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the confract; and
Recognition of revenue when or as Easter Seals NH satisfies the performance obligations.

e 9 0o © 0

Easter Seals NH determines the transaction price based on standard charges for goods and services
provided, reduced by any applicable discounts, contractual adjustments provided to third-party payors, or
explicit and implicit price concessions provided to groups or individuals. A performance obligation is a
promise in a contract with a customer to transfer products or services that are distinct. Determining
whether products and services are distinet performance obligations that should be accounted for
separately or combined as one unit of accounting may require significant Judgement

A significant portion of Easter Seals NH’s revenues are derived through arrangements with third-party
payors that provide for payment at amounts different from its established rates. Payment arrangéments
include discounted charges and prospectively determined payments. As such, Faster Seals NH is
dependent on these payors in order to carry out its operating activities. There is at least a reasonable

" possibility that recorded ‘estimates could change by a material amount in the near term. Differences .

between amounts previously estimated and amounts subsequently determined to be recoverable or
payable are included in fees and tuition in the year that such amounts become known.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2022 and 2021

2. 'Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenues are recognized when performance obligations are satisfied, or attributable to the period in which
specific terms of the funding agreement are satisfied, and to the extent that expenses have been incurred
for the purposes specified by the funding source. Revenue balances in excess of the foregomg amounts
are deferred until any restrictions are met or allowable expenditures are mcurred

The collection of outstanding receivables from third-party payors, patients and other clients is Baster Seals
NH’s primary source of cash and is critical to its operating performance. . The primary collection risks
relate to uninsured accounts, including accounts for which the. primary insurance carrier has paid- the
amounts covered by the applicable 'agrecment but individual responsibility amounts (deductibles and
copayments) remain outstanding. Implicit price concessions relate primarily to amounts due directly from
patients and other clients. Estimated implicit price concessions are recorded for all uninsured accounts,
regardless of the aging of those accounts. Accounts are written off when all reasonable internal and
external collection efforts have been performed. The estimates for implicit price concessions are based
upon management’s assessment. of historical write-offs and expected net: collections, business and
economic conditions, trends in federal, state and private employer health care coverage and other
collection indicators. Management relies on the results of detailed reviews of historical write-offs and
collections at facilities and programs that represent & majority of revenues and accounts receivable (the
“hindsight analysis™) as a primary source of information in estimating the collectability of accounts

receivable. Management performs the hindsight analysis regularly, utilizing rolling accounts receivable

~ collection and write-off data. Management believes its. regular updates to the estimated implicit price
concession-amounts provide reasonable estimates of revenues and valuations of accounts receivable.
These routine, regular changes in estimates have not resulted in material adjustments to the valuations of
accounts receivable or period-to-period comparisons of operations. At August 31, 2022 and 2021,
estimated implicit price concessions of $855,900 and $1,079,600, respectively, had been recorded as
reductions to program and other accounts receivable balances to enable Easter Seals NH to record
revenues and accounts receivable at the estimated amounts expected to be collected.

Unconditional contributions are recognized when the prormise to give is made and are recorded at the net
present value of estimated future cash flows.

Advertising
Easter Seals NH’s policy is to expense advertising costs as incurred. - “

Functional Allocation of Fxpenses

_The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets. Accordingly,
certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services based mainly on time

! records and estimates made by Easter Seals NH’s management.

Charity Care (Unaudired)

Easter Seals NH has a formal charity care policy under which program fees are subsidized as determined
by the Board of Directors. Free and subsidized services are rendered in accordance with decisions made
by the Board of Directors and, at established charges, amounted to approximately $8,099,000 and
$6,850,000 for the years ended August 31, 2022, and 2021 respcctwely
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
b .
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2022 and 2021

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Income Taxes

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc., Easter Seals Maine, Inc. (prior to dissolution on August 31, 2022),
Easter Seals VT and Farnum Center are exempt from both federal and state income taxes under
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, with the exception of certain federal taxes applicable to
not-for-profit entities.

Tax-exempt organizations could be required to record an obligation for income taxes as the result of a tax
position historically taken on various tax exposure iteims including unrelated business income or tax
status. In accordance with U.S. GAAP, assets and liabilities are established for uncertain tax positions
taken or positions expected to be taken in income tax returns when such positions are judged to not meet
the “more-likely-than-not” threshold, based upon the technical merits of the position.

Champlin Place, Inc. is a for-profit organization subject to Federal and state taxes. Deferred income taxes
of Champlin Place, Inc. are computed using the asset and liability method under which deferred income
tax assets and liabilities are computed based on temporary differences between the financial statement
and tax bases of assets and/or liabilities which will result in taxable or deductible amounts on future tax
returns. Champlin Place, Inc. records a valuation allowance against any deferred tax assets when it
determines it is unlikely that the tax asset will. be realized. No significant deferred income taxes have
been realized for Champlin Place, Inc. since the entity’s inception.

Management has evaluated tax positions taken by Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc., Easter Seals Maine,
Inc., Easter Seals VT and Farnum Center on their respective filed tax returns and concluded that the
organizations have maintained their tax-exempt status, do not have any significant unrelated business
income, and have taken no uncertain tax positions that require adjustment to or disclosure in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements, Champlin Place, Inc.’s management has determined
that Champlin Place Inc. has not taken, nor expects to take, any uncertain tax positions in any income
tax return,

~Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. Estimates are used in accounting for explicit and implicit price concessions in revenue,
workers’ compensation liabilities and contingencies,

Derivatives and Hedging Activities

Accounting guidance requires that Easter Seals NH record as an asset or liability the fair value of the
interest rate swap agreement described in note 11. Easter Seals NH is exposed to repayment loss equal
to the net amounts receivable under the swap agreement (not the notional amount) in the event of
nonperformance of the other party to the swap agreement. However, Easter Seals NH does not anticipate
nionperformance and does not obtain collateral from the other party.

IS
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TOCONS(.)L-IDA_TED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2022 and 2021

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

As of August 31,2022, and 2021, Easter Seals NH had recognized a liability of $995,184 and $2,238,251,
respectively, as a result of the interest rate swap agreements discussed in note 11.- As a result.of changes
in the fair value of these derivative financial instruments, Easter Seals NH recognized an increase in net
assets of $1,243,067 and $658,823 for the years ended August31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, in the
accompanying consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets. ~

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets from Operations

For purposes of display, transactions deemed by management to be ongoing, major or central to the
“provision of services are reported as revenue and expenses that comprise the increase (decrease) in net
assets from operations. The primary transactions reported as other non-operating expenses, gains and
losses include the adjustment to fair value of interest rate swaps, the change in the fair value of beneficial
interest in trust held by others, gains and losses on sales, disposals and impairment of fixed assets, the
contribution of assets from affiliation (see note 15) and net realized and unrealized gains and losses on
investments.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-02, Leases
(Topic 842). Under ASU 2016-02, at the commencement of a long-term lease, lessees will recognize a
liability equivalent to the discounted payments due under the lease agreeément, as well as an offsetting
right-of-use asset. Lessees {(for capital and operating leases} must apply a modified retrospective
transition approach for leases existing at, or entered into after, the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented in the consolidated financial statements, with certain practical expedients available. In
July 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-10, Codification Improvements to Topic 842, Leases, which seeks
to clarify ASU 2016-02 with respect to certain aspects of the update and ASU 2018-11, Leases
(Topic 842) — Targeted Improvements, which provides. transition relief on comparative reporting upon
adoption of the ASU. The guidance is effective for Easter Seals NH on September 1, 2022. Easter Seals
NH has evaluated the impact of the pending adoption of this standard on its consolidated financial
statements and estimates that the right-of-use asset and operating lease liability to be recorded at
September 1, 2022 will approximate $2,807,000.

In September 2020, the FASB issued ASU No. 2020-07, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 938). Presentation
and Disclosures by Not-for-Profit Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial Assets. ASU 2020-07 enhances
the presentation of disclosure requirements for contributed nonfinancial assets. ASU 2020-07 requires
entities to present contributed nonfinancial assets as a separate line item in the statements of activities and
disclose the amount of contributed nonfinancial assets recognized within the statements of activities by
category that depicts the type of contributed nonfinancial assets, as well as a description of any donor-
imposed restrictions associated with the contributed nonfinancial assets and the valuation techniques used
to arrive at a fair value measure at initial recognition. ASU 2020-07 is effective for Easter Seals NH and
was adopted on September 1, 2021. The adoption of this ASU did not have a significant impact on Easter
Seals NH’s consolidated ﬁnan(:lal statements.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2022 and 2021

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Subsequent Events

Events occurring after the statermment of financial position date are evaluated by management to determine
whether such events should be recognized or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.
Management has evaluated events occurring between the end of Easter Seals NH’s fiscal year end and
December 20, 2022, the date these consolidated financial statements were available to be issued,

Classification of Net Assets

The following provides a description of the net asset classifications represented in the Easter Seals NH
consolidated statements of financial position:

In accordance with Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA), net assets are
classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Net assets with
donor festrictions include contributions and endowment investment earnings subject to donor-imposed
restrictions, as well as irrevocable trusts and contributions receivable. Some donor-imposed restrictions
are temporary in nature with restrictions that are expected to be et either by actions of Easter Seals NH
and/or the passage of time. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where the donor
stipulates that resources are to be maintained in perpetuity, the income from which is expendable to
support all activities of the organization, or as stipulated by the donor.

Donor-réstricted contributions whose restrictions are met within the same year as received are reported
as support without donor restrictions in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with UPMIFA, Easter Seals NH considers the following factors in making a determination
to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: (a) the duration and preservation of the
fund; (b) the purpose of the organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund; (c) general economic
conditions; (d) the possible effect of inflation and deflation; () the expected total return from income and
the appreciation of investments; (f) other resources of the organization; and (g) the investment policies of
the organization.

Revenues are reported as increases in net assets without donor restrictions unless use of the related assets
is limited by donor-imposed restrictions. Expenses are reported as decreases in net assets without donor
restrictions. Gains and losses on investments and other assets or liabilities are reported as increases or
decreases in net assets without donor restrictions unless their use is restricted by explicit donor stipulation
or by law. Expirations of donor-imposed restrictions on net assets (i.e. the donor-stipulated purpose has
been fulfilled and/or the stipulated time period has elapsed) are reported as reclassifications between the
applicable classes of net assets.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS °

August 31, 2022 and 2021

3. Classification of Net Assets (Continued)

Endowment Net Asset Composition by Type of Fund

The major categories of endowment funds included in net assets with donor restrictions at August 31,
2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Original Donor
Restricted Gift  Accumulated

Maintained Investment

in Perpetuity Gains’ Total
2022
Other initiatives $1,462,085 $ 26,757 $1,488,842
Operations 3.838.633 - 3.838.633
Total endowinent net assets $5.300.718 $_26,757 $5327475
202]
Other initiatives $1,437,096 $227,759 $1,664,855
Operatioris 3.712.974 - 3.712.974
Total endowment net assets $5,150,070 $227.759 $5.377.829

Changes in Endowment Net Assets

During the years ended August 31,2022 and 2021, Easter Seals NH had the following endowment-related

activities:
Net endowment assets, August 31, 2020 $5,256,534
Investment return:
Investment income, net of fees 105,151
Net appreciation (realized and unrealized), net 56,955
Contributions 41,921
Appropriated for expenditure (82.732)
Net endowment assets, August 31, 2021 5,377,829
Investment retumn:
Investment income, net of fees 66,470
Net appreciation (realized and unrealized), net 12,536
Contributions : 96,811
Appropriated for expenditure (226,171)
Net endowment assets, August 31, 2022 $£5.327.475
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- August 31, 2022 and 2021

Classification of Net Assets (Continued)

Net assets were released from donor restrictions as follows for the years ended August 31:

022 2021
- Satisfaction bf donor restrictions , ) $223,756 . $754,895

Release of appropriated endowment funds - 226,171 82,732

In addition to endowment net assets, Easter Seals NH also maintains non-endowed funds. The major
categories of non-endowment funds, at August 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Without With Total Non-
Dénor Donor . Endowment
Restrictions  Restrictions  Net Assets
2022 : |
Other initiatives ‘ $ 134429  $466,798 $ 601,227
Operations ) 37316437 184442 . 37.500.879
Total non-endowment net assets $37.450,866  $651.240 $38.102.1
2021
Other initiatives $ 3,348,849  $516,330 $ 3,865,179
Operations ’ 27.677.613 224,358 27.901.973
Total non-endowment net assets $31.026464  $740,688 $31,76 Z 152

‘ From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment funds
may fall below the level that the donor requires Easter Seals NH to retain as a fund of permanent duration.
Deficiencies of this nature are reported in net assets with donor restrictions. There were no deficiencies
between the fair value of the investments of the endowment funds and the level requn"ed by donor
stipulation at August 31, 2022 or 2021.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2022 and 2021

3. Classification of Net Assets (Continued)

* Net assets with donor restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes at August 31:

2022 2021
Purpose restriction: ‘ -
Other initiatives $ 466,798 $ 516,330
Operations , : 47200 - _ 83514
513,998 599,844
Perpetual in nature: . .
Original donor restricted gift amount and amounts
required to be maintained by donor 5,307,363 5,171,595
Investments, gains and income from which is donor restricted 26,757 227,759
Beneficial interest in perpetual trust 130,597 119,319

5.464,717  5.518.673

Total net assets with donor restrictions $5.978.715 -$ 6:1 18,517

Net assets with donor restrictions are managed in accordance with donor intent and are invested in various
portfolios. '

Invéstment and Spending Policies

Easter Seals NH has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to
provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to
maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets. Endowment assets include those assets of donor-
restricted funds that Easter Seals NH:must hold in perpetuity or for a donor-specified period. Under this
‘policy, as approved by the Board of Directors, the endowment assets are invested in a manner that is
intended to produce results that exceed the price and yield results of an appropriate market index while
assuming a moderate level of investment risk. Easter Seals NH expects its endowment funds to provide
an average rate of return over a five~year period equal to the rate of 2% over the inflation rate. Actual
returns in any given year may vary from this amount.

To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, Easter Seals NH relies on a total return strategy in which
investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current
yield (interest and dividends). Easter Seals NH targets a diversified asset allocation that places a greater
emphasis on equity-based investments to achieve its long-term return objectivés within prudent risk
constraints. ’

Easter Seals NH may appropriate for distribution some or all of the earnings and appreciation on its
endowment for funding of operations. In establishing this policy, Easter Seals NH considered the
objective to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets held in perpetuity or for a specified
term as well as to, so long as it would not detract from Easter Seals NH’s critical goals and initiatives,
provide additional real growth through new gifts and investment return.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
| i\IOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2022 and 2021

4. Liguidity and Availability

Financial assets available for general expenditure, such as for operating expenses, and which are without
donor orother restrictions limiting their use, within one year of the consolidated statements of financial
position date (August 31, 2022), comprise the following: ~
4

Cash and cash equivalents $14,837,761

Short-term investments, at fair value - 10,055,639
Program and other accounts receivable y 9,748,641
Accounts receivable from related entity 394,316
Contributions receivable, net 7 172,253
. 35,208,610
Investments, at fair value 13.419.355
48,627,965
Less: net assets with donor restrictions (5.978.715)
. $42,649.250

To manage liquidity, Easter Seals NH maintains sufficient cash and cash equivalent balances to support
daily operations throughout the year. Cash and cash equivalents include bank deposits, money market
funds, and other similar vehicles that generate a return on cash and provide daily liquidity to Easter Seals
NH. The management of Easter Seals NH has implemented a practice to establish cash reserves on hand
that can be utilized at the discretion of management to help fund both operational needs and/or capital
projects. As of August 31, 2022, and 2021, approximately $10,200,000 and $10,177,000, respectively,
of cash and cash equivalents, and approximately $10,056,000 and $10,681,000, respectively, of
investments were on-hand under this practice. Because such funds are available and may be used in
current operations, they have been classified as current in the accompanying consolidated statements of
financial position.

5. Contrib_ut_iom Receivable

Contributions receivable from donors as of August 31, 2022 and 2021 are $197,962 and $236,642,
respectively, net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of $17,329 and $27,931, respectively. The long-
term portion of contributions receivable is recorded in other assets in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial position. Gross contributions are due as follows-at August 31, 2022:

2023 _ ; : $189,582
2024 3,380
2025 2,000
2026 : 2,000
2027 , : 1,000

$197,962
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -

August 31, 2022 and 2021

6. Revenues

L2
Revenue by Easter.Seals NH’s core programs included in fees and tuition and grants consisted of the

following:
Fees and
Tuition Grants Total
2022
Residential and educational services $33,336,907 $§ 478,631 $33,815,538
Community based services 2,529,116 21,853,895 24,383,011
Farnum Center 5,912,587 3,175,028 9,087,615
Family support services 6,796,012 515,896 7,312,508
Senior services 4,332,135 1,567,091 5,899,226
Transportation services 3,649,934 21,928 3,671,862
Outpatient and early support services 1,030,926 1,787,197 2,818,123
Children development services 1,661,031 494,511 2,155,542
Workforce development 1,878,376 1,125 1,879,501
. Other programs 786,996 1,734,848 2,521,844
$61.914,620 $31.630,150 $93,544,770
Fees and
Tuition Grants Total
2021
Residential and educational services $28,646,886 § 982,152 $29,629,038
Community based services 2,190,706 20,537,778 22,728,484
Farnum Center ) 9,104,776 3,875,518 12,980,294
Family support services ' : 7,150,066 352,915 7,502,981
Senior services : 3,831,492 2,018,562 5,850,054
Transportation services 2,999,166 36,563 3,035,729
Outpatient and early support services 1,037,854 1,580,370 2,618,224
Children development services 1,922,827 587,504 2,510,331
Workforce development 2,111,411 5,831 2,117,242
Other programs 1.025,577 3.119.181 4,144,758

$60,020.761 $33.096,374 $93,117,135

Revenués related to providing health services are recorded at the contracted rate for those that involved a
third-party payor and less any implicit price concession. Substantially all such adjustments in 2022 and
2021 are related to Farnum Center. A breakdown of Farnum Center’s revenue reflected in fees and tuition
in 2022 and 2021 from major payor sources is as follows:

2022 2021
Private payors (includes coinsurance and deductibles) $1,633,018 § 2,845,213
Medicaid 4,279,742 6,243,173
Medicare 14,237 38,368
Self-pay - : 24,668 (21.978)

$5.951,665 $_9,104.776
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2022 and 2021

6. Revenues (Continued)

In response to the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, Easter Seals NH qualified for certain federal grant
funding through the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (CARES Act) and CARES Act
Provider Relief Funding. As of August 31, 2022, and 2021, Easter Seals NH received approximately
$1,846,000 and $10,500,000, respectively, of which approximately $900,000 and $4,600,000,
respectively, was paid to employees either in the form of bonuses for retention and recruitment or
employees who qualified for the additional payments under certain programs. Easter Seals NH also
entered a Payroll Protection Program loan in 2021 which was forgiven on February 2, 2022 (see note 11).

7. Leases

Operating

Easter Seals NH leases certain assets under various arrangements which have been classified as operating
leases. Total expense under all leases (including month-to-month leases) was approximately $1,200,000
and $1,145,000 for the years ended August 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Some of these leases have
terms which include renewal options, and others may be terminated at Easter Seals NH’s option without
substantial penalty. Future minimum payments required under the leases in effect at August 31, 2022,
through the remaining contractual term of the underlying lease agreements, are as follows:

2023 . ' . $1,077,760
2024 579,592
2025 . 381,288
2026 276,403
2027 ) 231,914
Thereafter 28.269
Total $2,575.226

8. Fixed Assets

Fixed assets consist of the following at August 31:

2022 2021
Buildings $ 32,931,032 § 34,233,240
Land and land improvements 3,930,144 4,565,183
Leasehold improvements : _ 77,686 79,367
Office equipment and furniture 9,901,651 10,032,195
Vehicles ) 2,461,097 . 2,467,043
Construction in progress i ’ 439,135 678.379

49,740,745 52,055,407
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (22,524.502) (22,155.606)

$.27216243 §.29.899.801
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August 31, 2022 and 2021

Fixed Assets {Continued)

Depreciation and amortization expense related to fixed assets totaled $2,003,836 and $1,992,894 in 2022
and 2021, respectively.

Effective November 13, 2021, Farnum Center no longer provided certain residential treatments at its
Franklin, New Hampshire location. On June 29, 2022, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. was awarded a
grant agreement totaling $22,974,523 with the State of New Hampshire, Governor’s Office of Emergency
Relief and Recovery. This grant will support the construction of a mixed housing, supportive services,

and retreat campus for veterans and their families located in Franklin, New Hampshire. Easter Seals New
Hampshire, Inc. is obligated to complete the project prior to December 31, 2026. No amounts of this
grant were utilized through August31, 2022. Due to this agreement and the extensive nature of the
renovation, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. disposed of certain fixed assets associated with the
residential treatment center that was closed in November 2021 resulting in recognition of impairment of
fixed assets of approximately $1,882,000 in the accompanying 2022 consolidated statement of activities
and changes in net assets.

Investments and Assets Limited as to Use

Investments and assets limited as to use, at fair value, are as follows at August 31:

2022 2021
Cash and cash equivalents 3 252648 § 242,131
Marketable equity securities 1,744,099 2,239,468
Mutua] funds 22,406,691 25,484,877
Corporate and foreign bonds 287,951 397,883
Government and agency securities . 621.050 564,182

25,312,439 28,928,541

Less: assets limited as to use . . (1,837.445) (2.357.939)
Total investments, at fair value $23.474994 $26,570,602

The composition of assets limited as to use totaling $1,837,445 and $2,357,939 at August 31, 2022 .and
2021, respectively, are investments under a deferred compensation plan (see.note 10} at fair value,

Retirement Plans

Easter Seals NH maintains a Section 403(b) Plan (a defined contribution retirement plan), which covers
substantially all employees. Eligible employees may contribute any whole percentage of their annual
salary. Easter Seals NH makes a matching contribution for eligible employees equal to 100% of the
participants’ elective deferrals limited to 3% of the participants’ allowable compensation each pay period.
The combined amount of employer and employee contributions is subject by law to annual maximum
amounts. The employer match was approximately $645,000 and $816,000 for the years ended August 31,
2022 and 2021, respectively.
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August 31, 2022 and 2021

Retirenient Plans (Continued)

Easter Seals NH offers, to certain management personnel, the option to participate in an Internal Revenue
Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plan to which the organization may make a discretionary
contribution. The employees’ accounts are not available until termination, retirement, death or an
unforeseeable emergency. Easter Seals NH contributed approximately $101,210 and $84,000 to this plan
during the years ended August 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The assets and liabilities associated with
this plan were $1,837,445 and $2,357,939 at August 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, and are included
within assets limited as to use and other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated statements of

financial position.

Borrowings

Borrowings consist of the following at August 31:

Revenue Bonds, Series 2016A, tax exempt, issued through the New
Hampshire Health and Education Facilities Authority (NHHEFA),
with an annual LIBOR-based variable rate equal to the sum of
() 0.6501 times one-month LIBOR, plus (b) 0.6501 times 2.45%
(3.14% at August 31, 2022), due in annual principal payments
increasing from $49,167 to $62,917 with a final payment of
36,875,413 due in May 2027, secured by a pledge of all gross
revenues and negative pledge of cash, investments and real estate.

Revenue Bonds, Series 2016B, tax exempt, issued through NHHEFA,
with a fixed rate at 3.47%, annual principal payments continually
increasing from $17,430 to $21,180 with a final payment of
$4,521,598 due in May 2027, secured by a pledge of all gross
revenues and negative pledge of cash, investments and real estate.

Various notes payable to a bank with fixed interest rate of 2.24%,
various principal and interest payments ranging from $419 to $1,070
payable monthly through dates ranging from September 2021
through September 2025, secured by vehicles with a net book value
of $173,523 at August 31, 2022,

Mortgage note payable to a bank with a fixed rate of 3.25%. Principal
and interest of $12,200 payable monthly, due in February 2030,
secured by an interest in certain property with a net book value of
$2,691,921 at August 31, 2022.

Note payable to the City of Rochester, New Hampshire, payable in
annual payments of $16,408, including interest at 3.35% and net of
$7,290 of principal and interest loan funding grant, through July 1,
2027, secured by an interest in certain property, paid off in June
2022 at no penalty.

Payroll Protection Program loan, 1% interest, advance amount payable
in equal monthly payments of principal and interest commencing on
the first business day after the end of the deferment period (July 31,
2022), forgiven in February 2022.
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2022

$10,061,668

5,655,563

174,119

1,995,428

[
[ 3]
—

$10,643,336

5,897,177

256,662

| 2,074,653.

87,859

10,000,000
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11. Borrowings (Continued)

2022 2021
Note payable to NHHFA, 0% interest, repaid at the time of construction

loan closing on the project or the project being determined infeasible

by the Authority, in which case, the loan shall be forgiven, and no

repayment expected. Paid off in July 2022 at no penalty. 3 - § 45000
Note payable to NHHFA, 0% interest, conditional repayment terms,

based off surplus cash availability, due October 2031, secured by an

interest in certain property with a net book value of $767,351 at

August 31, 2022. 531,486 531,486
Note payable to NHHFA, 0% interest, conditional repayment terms,

based off surplus cash availability, due March 2040, secured by an

interest in certain property with a net book value of $529,443 at

August 31, 2022, 492,448 492,448
Note payable to the City of Manchester, New Hampshire, 0% interest,

annual principal payable of $4,518 on October 1 each year for

10 years through October 2026 secured by an interest in certain

property with a net book value of $767,351 at August 31, 2022. 67.762 72,280

18,978,474 30,100,901

Less current portion (1,016,962)  (1,222,914)
Less net unamortized bond issuance costs ) (100.506) {106.616)

$17.861,006 $28.771371

Principal payments on long-term debt for each of the following years ending August 31 are.as follows:

2023 : § 1,016,962
2024 . 1,020,737
2025 1,032,876
2026 1,050,365
2027 1,139,574
Thereafter . 13,717,960

$18.978,474

Lines of Credit and Other Financing Arrangements

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. has an agreement with a bank for a $500,000 revolving equipment line,
which can be used to fund the purchase of New Hampshire titled vehicles for use by Easter Seals New
Hampshire, Inc. on demand. Advances are converted to term notes as utilized. The interest rate charged
on outstanding borrowings is a fixed rate equal to the then Business Vehicle Rate at the time of the
advance for maturities up to a five-year term. Included in long-term debt are eight notes payable totaling
$174,119 and seventeen notes payable totaling $256,662 at August 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively,
which originated under this agreement. Availability under this agreement at August 31, 2022 and 2021
is $325,881 and $243,338, respectively.
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11. Borrowings {Continued)

On August 31, 2015, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. entered into a revolving line of credit with a bank.
On February 26, 2019, an amendment changed the borrowing availability from $4 million to $7 million
(a portion of which is secured by available letters of credit of $24,000). On July 16, 2020, an amendment
changed the outstanding advances from due on demand to a firm maturity date of June 30, 2022 and the
interest rate charged on outstanding borrowings was revised to be the one-month LIBOR rate plus 2.25%.
On June 29, 2022, an amendment changed the interest rate charged on outstanding borrowings to be the
one-month BSBY rate plus 2.25% (4.66% at August 31, 2022), and the maturity date was extended to
June 30, 2023. Under an event of default, the interest rate will increase from the one-month BSBY rate
plus 2.25% to the then applicable interest rate plus 5.00%. The line is secured by a first priority interest
in all business assets of Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. with guarantees from Easter Seals Vermont,
Inc. and Farnum Center. The agreement requires that collective borrowings under the line of credit be
reduced to $1,000,000 for 30 consecutive days during each calendar year. There were no amounts
outstanding under this revolving line of credit agreement at August 31, 2022 and 2021.

On July 16, 2020, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. entered into a revolving line of credit with a bank
with borrowing availability of up to $4 million. Outstanding advances were due upon the expiration date
on November 16, 2020, and the revolving line of credit was not renewed upon expiration.

NHHEFA 20164 and 20168 Revenie Bonds

On December 20, 2016, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. issued $13,015,000 in Series 2016A. Tax
Exempt Revenue Bonds. These bonds were used to refinance the Series 2004 A Revenue Bonds.

Also, on December 20, 2016, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. issued $9,175,000 in Series 2016B Tax
Exempt Revenue Bonds. The bonds were issued to refinance an existing mortgage and to obfain funds
for certain planned capital projects.

Morteage Notes Payable

On February 18, 2015, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. and Farnum Center entered into a $2,480,000
mortgage note payable to finance the acquisition of certain property located in Franklin, New Hampshire.
The initial interest rate charged is fixed at 3.25%. Monthly principal and interest payments are $12,200,
and all remaining outstanding principal and interest is due on February 18, 2030. The note is secured by
the property.

Effective July 1, 2021, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. has assumed responsibility of the agreement
that was made between The Way Home, Inc. (the Organization) and NHHFA dated October 11, 2001 that
obtained federal funding through the HOME Investment Partoership Programs (see note 15). The funds
were used for improvements on 214 Spruce Street in Manchester, New Hampshire. The interest rate
charged is fixed at 0.00%. As defined in accordance with the regulatory agreement that expires on
October 11, 2031, repayment of the balance is conditional based on if surplus cash available exceeds
25%, until the project is sold or refinanced, or upon expiration of the regulatory agreement. So long as
the Organization continues to comply with the terms of the loan to provide housing and related services
to low income, nearly homeless families, the Organization will not be required to repay this loan or any
interest. The note is secured by the property. No payments were made jn 2022.
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11. Borrowings (Continued)

Effective July 1, 2021, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. has assumed responsibility for the agreement
that was made between the Organization and NHHFA dated March 17, 2010. The funds were used for
the acquisition, construction and permanent financing on 224 Spruce Street in Manchester, New
Hampshire. The interest rate charged is fixed at 0.00%. As defined in accordance with the regulatory
agreement that expires on March 17, 2040, repayment of the balance is conditional based on if surplus
cash-available exceeds 50%, until the project is sold or refinanced, or upon expiration of the regulatory
agreement. The note is secured by the property. No payments were made in 2022.

Notes Payable

Effective September 1, 2018, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. has assumed responsibility for the
agreement that was made between The Homemakers Health Services, Inc. and the City of Rochester, New
Hampshire that obtained grants and other funding commitments to fund the costs associated with the
design and construction of an extension of the City of Rochester, New Hampshire’s public sewer mains
to service the Organization’s property in Rochester, New Hampshire. The costs associated with the
extension of the sewer main were $523,298, which was funded by grants of $181,925 and a promissory
note, payable to the City of Rochester, New Hampshire of $341,373. The promissory note bears interest
at 3.35% per annum. In addition, the City of Rochester, New Hampshire was approved for a loan funding
grant in the amount of $145,798, which consisted of the loan principal funding of $105,018 and the loan
interest funding of $40,780. A net principal promissory note payable of $236,355 was recorded with an
issue date of July 1, 2017. This note payabie was repaid in full in 2022.

On June 25, 2020, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. entered into a $640,000 note payable with the State
of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services COVID-19 Emergency Healthcare System
Relief Fund (the Lender) to support critical services, costs of health care professionals and the purchase
of personal protective equipment and cleaning/sanitization supplies due to the COVID-19 pandemic. At
the Lender’s discretion, this loan may be converted to a grant and forgiven. The Lender shall determine
by November 30, 2020 whether it believes that any part of the funds being loaned should not be repaid in
full. There is no interest paid to this note. In November 2020, a notification was received from the Lender
that the full note amount was converted to a grant and forgiven.

On June 25, 2020, .Farnum Center entered into a $500,000 note payable with the State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services COVID-19 Emergency Healthcare System Relief Fund (the
Lender) to support critical services, costs of health care professionals and the purchase of personal
protective equipment and cleaning/sanitization supplies due to the COVID-19 pandemic. At the Lender’s
discretion, this note may be converted to a grant and forgiven. The Lender shall determine by
November 30, 2020 whether it believes that any part of the funds being loaned should not be repaid in
full. There is no interest paid to this note. In October 2020, a notification was received from the Lender
that the full note amount was converted to a grant and forgiven.

On October 14, 2020, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. entered into agreement with NHHFA for a
technical assistance loan in an amount not to exceed $45,000 for the Rochester Supportive Housing
Project (the project). The interest rate charged is fixed at 0.00%, and the loan shall be repaid at the time
of construction loan closing on the project whether the project was financed with NHHFA funds or
another funding source. Should the project not proceed to a closing, whether financed through NHHFA
or another funding source, and the project be determined infeasible by NHHFA, then the Toan shall be
forgiven, and no repayment expected. In July 2022, this loan was been paid off by Easter Seals NH.
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11. Borrowings (Continued)

Effective July 1, 2021, Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. has assumed responsibility for the agreement
dated July 1, 2016 that was made between the Organization and the City of Manchester through the
Community Improvement Program. The funds were used for facility upgrades on 214 Spruce Street in
Manchester, New Hampshire. The interest rate charged is fixed at 0.00%. Annual principal payments of
$4,518 commencing October 1, 2017 can be forgiven through October 1, 2026 so long as the Organization
can demonstrate the agreed-upon objectives have been achieved. On August 23, 2018, an amendment
changed that the annual principal payments will be deferred from October 1, 2017 and resume October 1,
2022. The note is secured by the property.

Payroll Protection Program Loan

On April 16, 2021, Easter Seals NH entered into a promissory note for an unsecured loan in the amount
of $10,000,000 through the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) established by the CARES Act and
administered by the U.S. Small Business Administration (SBA). The PPP provides loans to qualifying
businesses for amounts up to 2.5 times the average monthly payroll expenses of the qualifying business.
The loan and a¢erued interest had original terms that were forgivable after the covered period as long as
the borrower used the loan proceeds for eligible purposes, including payroll, benefits, rent, and utilities,
and maintains its payroll levels. The amount of loan forgiveness would be reduced if the borrower
terminated employees or reduced salaries during the period. The PPP loan was made for the purpose of
securing funding for salaries and wages of employees that may have otherwise been displaced by the
outbreak of COVID-19 and the resulting detrimental impact' on Easter Seals NH'’s business. Any
unforgiven portion of the PPP loan bears interest at 1%, with a deferral of payments for the first ten
months. Beginning February 16, 2022, principal and interest payments for any unforgiven portion of the
PPP loan will be due monthly through April 16, 2026. The PPP loan may be prepaid at any time without
penalty. Easter Seals NH accounted for the PPP loan in accordance with the FASB ASC Topic 470 and
included the full $10,000,000 within debt in the August 31, 2021 consolidated statement of financial
position, In February 2022, Easter Seals NH received approval for full forgiveness from the SBA. Upon
receiving forgiveness during the year ended August 31, 2022, Easter Seals NH recognized a gain on
extinguishment of long-term debt in the accompanying 2022 consolidated statement of activities and
changes in net assets.

Interest Rate Swap Agreement

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. has an interest rate swap agreement with a bank in connection with the
Series 2004A NHHEFA Revenue Bonds. On December 1, 2016, an.amendment to this agreement was
executed in anticipation of the refinancing of the 2004A revenue bonds to change the interest rate charged
from 3.54% to 3.62% and the floating rate from LIBOR times 0.67 to LIBOR times 0.6501. The swap
agreement had an outstanding notional amount of $10,061,668 and $10,643,336 at August 31, 2022 and
2021, respectively, which reduces in conjunction with principal reductions until the agreement is
terminated in November 2034,
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Borrewings (Continued)

The fair value of the above interest rate swap agreement totaled $995,184 and $2,238,251 at August 31,
2022 and 2021, respectively, $579,174 and $387,067 of which was current at August 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively. During the years ended August 31, 2022 and 2021, net payrments required by the agreement
totaled $338,761 and $391,075, respectively. These payments have been included in interest expense
within the accompanying consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets. See note 14
with respect to fair value determinations. ‘

Debt Covenants
In connection with the bonds, lines of credit and various other notes payable described above, Easter Seals
NH is required to comply with certain financial covenants including, but not limited to, minimum liquidity

and debt service coverage ratios. At August 31, 2022, Easter Seals NH was in compliance with restrictive
covenanis specified under the NHHEFA bonds and other debt obligations.

Donated Services

A number of volunteers have donated their time in connection with Easter Seals NH’s program services
and fundraising campaigns. However, no amounts have been reflected in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements for such donated services, as no-objective basis is available to measure the value.

Related Party Transactions

Easter Seals NH is a member of Easter Seals, Inc. Membership fees to Easter Seals, Inc. were $130,276
and $105,185 for the years ended August 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, and are reflected as.support of
National programs on the accompanying consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value of a financial instrument is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
{0 transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at their measurernent date. In
determining fair value, Easter Seals NH uses various methods including market, income and cost
approaches, and utilizes certain assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or
liability, including assumptions about risk and the risks inherent in factors used in the valuation. These
factors may be readily observable, market corroborated, or generally unobservable. Easter Seals NH
utilizes valuation techmiques that maximize the use of observable factors and minimizes the use of
unobservable factors,
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14. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

Certain of Easter Seals NH’s financial instruments are reported at fair value, which include beneficial
interest held in trust, investments and the interest rate swap, and are classified by levels that rank the
quality and reliability of the information used to determine fair value:

Level 1 = Valuations for financial instruments traded in active exchange markets, such as the New
York Stock Exchange. Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources for market
transactions invelving identical instruments.

Level 2 — Valuations for financial instruments traded in less active dealer or broker markets.
Valuations are obtained from third-party pricing services for identical or similar instruments.

Level 3 — Valuations for financial instruments derived from other methodologies, including option
pricing models, discounted cash flow models and similar techniques, and not based on market
exchange, dealer or broker traded transactions. Leével 3 valuations incorporate certain assumptions
and projections in determining fair value.

The following describes the valuation methodologies used to measure financial assets and liabilities at
fair value. The levels relate to valuation only and do not necessarily indicate a measure of investment
risk. There have been no changes in the methodologies used by Easter Seals NI at August 31, 2022 and
2021.

Investments and Assets Limited as to Use

Cash and cash equivalents are deemed to be Level 1. The fair values of marketable equity securities and
mutual funds that are based upon quoted prices in active markets for identical assets are reflected as
Level 1. Investments in certain government and agency securities and corporate and foreign bonds where
securities are transparent and generally are based upon quoted prices in active markets are valued by the
investment managers and reflected as Level 2.

Beneficial Interest in Trust Held by Others

The beneficial interest in trust held by others has been assigned fair value levels based on the fair value
levels of the underlying investments within the trust. The fair values of marketable equity securities,
money market and mutual funds are based upon quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and
are reflected as Level 1. Investments in marketable equity securities and mutual funds where securities
are transparent and generally are based upon quoted prices in active markets are valued by the investment
managers and reflected as Level 2.

Interest Rate Swap Agreement
The fair value for the interest rate swap liability is included in Level 3 and is estimated by the counterparty

using industry standard valuation models. These models project future cash flows and discount the future
amounts to present value using market-based observable inputs, including interest rates.
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14. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

At August 31, 2022 and 2021, Easter Seals NH’s assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring
basis were classified as follows: )

Level 1 ‘Level 2 Level 3 Total
2022 )
Assets: : .
Assets limited as to use and investments
at fair value: :
Cash and cash equivalents, $ 252,648 $ - 3 - § 252,648
Marketable equity securities: . ‘
Large-cap: 1,284,778 - - 1,284,778
International 459,321 - - 459,321
Mutual funds, open-ended:
Short-term fixed income 11,649,947 - - 11,649,947
Intermediate-term bond fund 3,547,536 - - 3,547,536
High yield bond fund 74,590 - - 74,590
Foreign bond: 19,577 - - 19,577
Government securities 160,713 vo— = 160,713
Emerging markets bond 376,551 - - 376,551
International equities 1,290,322 - - . 1,290,322
Domestic, large-cap 1,058,579 - - 1,058,579
Domestic, small-cap 118,360 - - 118,360
Domestic, multi alt 300,029 - f— 300,029
Real estate fund 178,165 - - 178,165
Mutual funds, closed-ended: ’
Domestic, large-cap 2,794,158 - - 2,794,158
Domestic, mid-cap . 481343 - - . 481,343
Domestic, small-cap 356,821 - - 356,821
Corporate and foreign bonds - 287,951 - 287,951
Government and agency securities - 621,050 - 621,050
$24.403.438 $_909.001 $ - $25.312.439
Beneficial interest in trust held by others:
Money market funds $ 1,568 % — $ — $ 1,568
Marketable equity securities: A
Large-cap 96,378 - - 96,378
Mutual funds: : _
Domestic, fixed income L — 32,651 - 32,651
$__97,946 $_ 32,651 $ - $_._130597
Liabilities:
Interest rate swap agreement $ - ¥ - $_995184 §_ 995,184
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2022 and 2021

14, Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

2021
Assets:
Assets limited as to use and investments
at fair value:

Cash and cash equivalents

Marketable equity securities:
Large-cap
International

Mutual funds, open-ended:
Short-term fixed income
Intenmediate-term bond fund
High yield bond fund
Foreign bond
Government securities
Emerging markets bond
International equities
Domestic, large-cap
Domestic, small-cap
Domestic, multi alt
Real estate fund

Mutual funds, closed-ended:
Domestic, large-cap
Domestic, mid-cap
Domestic, small-cap

Corporate and foreign bonds

Government and agency securities

Beneficial interest in trust held by others:

Money market funds
Marketable equity securities:
Large-cap
Mutual funds:
Domestic, fixed income

Liabilities:
Interest rate swap agreement

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$ 242,131 % — $ — $ 242,131
1,598,724 - - 1,598,724
640,743 - - 640,743
12,415,237 - - 12,415,237
3,051,709 - - 3,051,709
86,611 - - 86,611
22,597 - - 22,597
165,842 - - 165,842
215,384 - - 215,384
1,559,537 - - 1,559,537
1,549,560 - - 1,549,560
61,390 - - 61,390
819,941 - - 819,941
220,075 - - 220,075
4,164,781 - - 4,164,781
465,969 - - 465,969
686,244 - - 686,244
- 397,883 - 397,883
— 564,183 - 564,183
$27.966475 $_962066 § — $28,928,541
b 2240 § - $ — $ 2,240 |
88,345 - - 88,345
— 28.734 - 28.734
$ 90,585 $__ 28734 § — $__119.319
$_ - S - $2238251 $.223825]
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2022 and 2021

14. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

The table below sets forth a summary of changes in the fair value of Easter Seals NH’s Level 3 liabilities
for the yvears ended August 31, 2022 and 2021:

Interest
Rate Swap
Ending balance, August 31, 2020 ‘ ’ | , $(2,897,074)
Change in fair value 658,823
Ending balance, August 31, 2021 : ' (2,238,251)
Change in fair valu;: . 1.243.067

Ending balance, August 31, 2022 _ $_(995,184) .

15. Acquisition of The Way Home

On October 28, 2020, Easter Seals NH began providing financial and operational management to The
Way Home (the Organization). On July 1, 2021, Easter Seals NH acquired the Organization for no
consideration. This affiliation was accounted for in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles guidance on acquisitions by a not-for-profit entity. Upon affiliation, the Organization became
a program of Easter Seals NH. The financial position of the Organization, recorded at fair value upon
affiliation as of July 1, 2021, was as follows:

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents -8 257622
Restricted cash o 107,791
Program and other accounts receivable 253,631
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 11,319
Other assets 252,995
Fixed assets 1.307.228
Total assets 2,190,586
Liabilities:
Accrued expenses : : (28,577)
Deferred revenue (26,307)
Other liabilities ‘ (336,916)
Long-term debt (1,096,214)
Total liabilities - (1,488.014)
Contribution of net assets from acquisition $__702.572
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2022 and 2021

16. Champlin Place Limited Partnership

Champlin Place Limited Partnership (the Partnership) was formed in June 2022 as a limited partnership
under the laws of the State of New Hampshire. The Partnership’s purpose is to dcquire, own, develop,
construct and/or rehabilitate, lease, manage, and operate an apartment complex to be constructed and
located at 215 Rochester Hill Road, Rochester, New Hampshire, comprised of 65 residential apartments
benefiting low to moderate-income households (the Project). The Partnership’s equity was contributed
by its General Partner, Champlin Place, Inc., of which Easter Seals NH is the sole owner, and Housing
New England Fund 1V, a limited partner and unrelated party. The Partnership agreement provides for the
allocation of profits and losses to the partners, proportionate to the equity contributed, as follows:

General Partner, Champlin Place, Inc. (wholly-owned by Easter Seals NH) ' 0.01%
Limited Partner, Housing New England Fund IV (an unrelated party) 99.99%

Capital Contributions

Easter Seals NH, as the sole owner of the General Partner, Champlin Place, Inc., has made its required
capital contribution of $1,742 as of August 31, 2022, which is recorded as investment in related entity in
the accompanying 2022 consolidated statement of financial position. Champlin Place, Inc. is obligated

to make additional capital contributions in the amount of $155,078, which amounts are expected to be
funded in October 2023.

Deferred. Developer Fee

On June 30, 2022, Easter Seals NH entered into a Development Services Agreement for the Project, in
which Easter Seals NH will earn up to $2,272,940 as a development fee for its services in connection with
the construction and development of the Project. Under the Development Services Agreement, $250,000
was earned and recognized as other revenue by Easter Seals NH in the 2022 consolidated statement of
activities and changes in net assets. The balance of the development fee will be earned on the date that
the construction and development of the Project is substantially complete, and all dwelling units have
been completed and are placed in service, with all balances to be paid prior to December 31, 2036.

Ground Lease

On June 30, 2022, Easter Seals NH entered into a ground lease with the Partnership for the land located

at 215 Rochester Hill Road, Rochester, New Hampshire, with terms of 98 years from the date of . .

execution. The Partnership will be required to pay Easter Seals NH base rent of $37,004 per annum,
commencing on January 1, 2023, and continuing on each one-year anniversary date of the. lease, payable
from available cash flow, as defined in the agreement. If available cash flow is insufficient to pay the full
amount of the base rent for any year, the unpaid portion will accrue interest at 3.43% per annum and be
payable on a cumulative basis in the first year in which there is sufficient available cash flow or capital
proceeds.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2022 and 2021

16. Champlin Place Limited Partnership (Continued)

Community Development Block Grant Loan and Agreements

In 2022, the City of Rochester, New Hampshire was awarded a Community Development Block Grant
by the Community Development Finance Authority. In turn, the City of Rochester, New Hampshire has
granted a conditional grant of $975,000 to Easter Seals NH, which in turn will loan the funds to the
Partnership to pay for site work improvements and certain construction costs of the Project through a
leasehold mortgage that was executed on June 30, 2022 between Easter Seals NH and the Partnership.
The loan accrues no interest, and is payable to Easter Seals NH in one lump sum 30 years from the date
of the note (July 2052). In the event of default of this condition, Easter Seals NH has the right to recover
all of the CDBG funds expended on the Project on behalf of the New Hampshire Community
Development Loan Fund. The amount of CDBG funds subject to recovery may decrease over the twenty-
year period at a rate negotiated between the City of Rochester and Easter Seals NH and approved by the
Community Development Finance Authority.- Also as defined in the leasehold mortgage, if the
Partnership performs its obligations as defined in the agreement, then repayment of the leasehold
mortgage will become void, therefore requiring no repayment by the Partnership to Easter Seals NH.
Because of that provision, in 2023 Easter Seals NH will recognize offsetting assets and liabilities related
to the $975,000 in funding received from the City of Rochester, New Hampshire and subsequent loan to
the Partnership when cash flow associated with the grant and leasehold mortgage is expected.

Sponsor Loan and Terms

On June 30, 2022, in order to provide additional funding to the Partnership for upcoming site work and
construction costs, Easter Seals NH entered into a $563,607 loan agreement with the Partnership. This
loan bears interest at the rate of 0% and, at August 31, 2022, no amounts had been drawn on the loan by
the Partnership. If not paid earlier, all outstanding principal and interest accrued must be repaid to Easter
Seals NH on June 30, 2052. Payments of principal and interest are to be made to the extent of available
cash flow, as defined in the agreement. If repayment is not made within thirty days of the maturity date,
or if any payment due is not paid within thirty days of the due date, then interest will be payable on any
unpaid sum at the rate of 12% per annum, compounded annually, until such amount is paid, or another
means of payment is arranged.

Reimbiirsement Agreements

On June 30, 2022, Easter Seals NH entered into a Reimbursement Agreement with the Partnership to
reimburse Easter Seals NH for all predevelopment expenses incurred by the Project that were paid by
Easter Seals NH. The Partnership acknowledged and agreed that the Partnership is solely responsible to
pay all project expenses not later than the date of the closing of the Partnership’s construction loan for
the Project, which was July 13, 2022, As of August 31, 2022, Easter Seals NH was owed $394,316 by
the Partnership, which amount is recorded within accounts receivable from related entity in the
accompanying 2022 consolidated statement of financial position.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

August 31, 2022 and 2021

16. Champlin Place Limited Partnership {(Continued)
Further, Easter Seals NH will be paid certain amounts under a Partnership Administration Agreement,
dated as of June 30, 2022 between Easter Seals NH and the Partnership, whereby Easter Seals NI will
provide various administrative services in exchange for fees of $4,875 per year beginning in 2023,
increasing 3% annually beginning January 1, 2024.

Right of Refusal and Option Agreement

Through a Right of Refusal and Option 'Agreement dated June 30, 2022, the Partnership granted to Easter
Seals NH certain rights of first refusal and options to purchase the Project, which, if elected, would include
the 99.99% interest in the Project held by Housing New England Fund IV. As a result, Easter Seals NH
has been granted an irrevocable, successive, and exclusive right of refusal to purchase the Project. Such
right is exercisable for a period of 24-months beginning upon expiration of an initial 15- -year compliance
period, and continuing until the Partnership otherwise sells the Project.

Through a Right of Refusal and Opinion Agreement dated June 30, 2022, Housing New England Fund IV
has the option to give written notice to Champlin Place, Inc. at any time following the end of the Credit
Period, as defined, to require Champlin Place, Inc. to purchase the interest of Housing New England
Fund IV for a price equal to the sum of: (i) $100, (ii) the amount of any federal, state or local tax liability
required to be paid (including, without limitation, any real estate transfer or franchise taxes), (iii) any
costs incurred by Housing New England Fund IV in connection with the transfer of its interest, and (iv) all
amounts then due and owing to Housing New England Fund IV or its affiliates under the agreement.
Upon receipt of such written notice of the put option, Champlin Place, Inc. shall purchase such interest
and make all payments required within 30 days. At the date of these consolidated financial statements,
the put option was not eligible to be exercised by Housing New England Fund IV, and it is expected that
the Credit Period will extend through December 31, 2034.

Guaranty Agreement

On June 30, 2022, Easter Seals NH unconditionally guaranteed due payment, performance, and
fulfillment of certain obligations of the Partnership and Housing New England Fund IV. Easter Seals
NH’s liability is generally limited and shall not exceed $402,000 in the aggregate, and the guaranty
terminates upon the later of the 60® month anniversary of the stabilization date, as defined, and the date
that the Partnership has achieved stabilized occupancy for five consecutive calendar years. However,
should an operating deficit arise before the latest of permanent mortgage commencement or cost
certification, as defined in the agreement, or the date the Project achieves 100% occupancy, then Easter
Seals NH’s obligation to advance funds to pay operating deficits shall be unlimited. At the date of these
consolidated financial statements, no events or conditions have occurred that would trigger Easter Seals
NH’s performance under the guaranty agreement.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

August 31, 2022

ASSETS
New Farnum Elimin-
Hampshire* Center Vermont ations Total
Current assets: .
Cash and cash equivalents $14,819,630 § 520 § 17,611 b - $14,837,761
Restricted cash 79,819 - - - 79,819
Short-term investments, at fair value 10,055,639 - - - 10,055,639
Accounts recejvable from ‘affiliates - 8,187,000 573,894 (9,760,894) -
Accounts receivable from related entity 394,316 - - - 394,316
Program and other accounts.receivable 8,063,145 041,833 -743,663 - 9,748,641
Contributions receivable, net 171,994 : 259 — — 172,253
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 862299 - 2.070 13.540 - 907.909
Total current assets 34,476,842 10,131,682 1,348,708 (9,760,894 36,196,338
Assets limited as to use 1,834,925 2,520 - - 1,837,445
Investments, at fair value 12,622,311 797,044 - — 13,419,355
Investment in related entity 1,742 - - - 1,742
Other assets 349,154 — - - 349,154
Fixed assets, net 18.914.210 8.214.080 87,953 — 27.216.,243
$68.199.184 $19.145326 $1,436,661 $(9,760.894) $79.020,277
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Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accounts payable to affiliates
Deferred revenue
Current portion of interest rate swap agreement
Current portion of long-term debt

Total current liabilities
Other liabilities
Interest rate swap agreement, less current portion
Long-term debt, less current portion, net
Total liabilities
Net assets:
Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

* Includes Champlin Place, Inc.

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

New Farnum
Hampshire* Ceiiter Vermont
$ 2,538,018 § - 3 -
6,381,470 69,089 -
9,760,894 - -
4,055,463 527,793 15,389
579,174 — —
901,994 114.968 -
24,217,013 711,850 15,389
2,127,802 2,520 -
416,010 - -
11,817,107 6.043.899 —
38,577,932 6,758,269 15,389
24,296,543 11,786,295 1,368,028
5,324,709 600,762 53,244
29.621,252 12,387,057 1,421,272
$68,199,184
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$19.145.326 $1.436,661

Maine

Elimin-
ations
$ -

(9,760,894)

Total

$ 2,538,018
6,450,559
4,598,645

579,174

(9,760,894

(9,760,894)

1.016.962
15,183,358
2,130,322
416,010
17.861.006 "
35,590,696

37,450,866
5,978,713

43.429.581

5(9.760.894)

$79.020,277
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Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Short-term investments, at fair value
Accounts receivable from affiliates
Program and other accounts receivable
Contributions receivable, net
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets
Asgsets limited as to use
Investments, at fair value
Other assets

Fixed assets, net

EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

August 31, 2021

ASSETS
New Farnum Elimin- .
Hampshire Center Vermont Maine ations Total
$14,362,485 $- 680 $ 21,041 $ 4,807 §$ - $14,389,013
82461 - - - - 82,461
10,681,421 - . - - - 10,681,421
- 8,293,852 564,017 - (8,857,869) —
6,754,763 942,023 819,392 77,160 - 8,593,338
219,930 2,749 2,186 - - 224,865
600915 12,252 12684 7.851 - 633.702
32,761,975 9,251,556 1,419,320 89,818 (8,857,869) 34,604,800
2,357,939 - - - - 2,357,939
14,916,185 962,256 - 10,740 = 15,889,181
378,877 - R - - 378,877
19,285,292 10.536.119 74.328_ 4.062 — 25.899.301
$69.640.268 $20.749.931 $1.493.648 $_ 104.620 $(8.857.869) $83.130.598
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Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accounts payable to affiliates
Deferred revenue
Current portion of interest rate swap agreement
Current portion of long-term debt

Total current liabilities
Other liabilitics
Interest rate swap agreement, less current portion
Long-term debt, less current portion, net
Total liabilities
Net assets (deficit):
‘Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets (deficit)

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

New Famum Elimin-
Hampshire Center Vermont Maine ations Total
$ 2,311,091 §% 35 3 553 % 872 % - $ 2,312,551
6,596,298 298,467 20 350 - 6,895,135
4,872,222 - - 3,985,647 (8,857,869) EN
990,620 851,279 5,792 14,892 - 1,862,583
387,067 - - - - 387,067
1,030,748 192.166 — — — 1,222,914
16,188,046 1,341,947 6,365 4,001,761 (8,857,869) 12,680,250
2,682,812 - - - - 2,682,812
1,851,184 — - - - - 1,851,184
22.615.261 6,156,110 — — — 28.771.371
43,337,303 7,498,057 6,365 4,001,761 (8,857,869) 45,985,617
20,884,644 12,641,512 1;401,174 (3,900,866) - 3 1)':026,464
5418.321 610362 86,109 3,725 - 6.118.517
26,302,965 13,251,874 1,487,283 (3,897.141) - 37.144.981
$69.640.268 $20,749,931 $1.493.648 - §__104,620 $(8,857.869) $83.130,598
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDJARIES
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Year Ended August 31, 2022

44

New Farnum Elimin-
Hampshire* Center - Vermont Maine ations Total
Public support and revenue:
Public support:
Contributions, net $ 1,014,261 § 87,404 § 28492 § 3,570 § - % 1,133,727
Special events, net 1,951,633 29,142 (327) (5,129) - 1,975,319
-Annual campaigns, net 242613 1,555 4,404 454 - 249,026
Bequests 4,160 - - - - 4.160
Total public support 3,212,667 118,101 32,569 (1,103) - 3,362,232
Revenue:
Fees and tuition 49,164,160 5,951,665 6,796,612 65,805 (63,622) 61,914,620
Grants 27,738,493 3,175,912 571,852 143,893 - 31,630,150
(Gain on extinguishment of debt 5,531,044 3,595,084 51,164 72,708 - 9,250,000
Dividend and interest income 814,161 32,880 - 116 - 847,157
Rental income 31,762 - — - - 31,762
Intercompany revenue 1,860,214 - - - (1,860,214) -
Other 391,445 390 2,817 - = 394,652
Total revenue 85,531,279  12.755.931 7.422.445 282.522 ( ] .923.836) _104.068.341
Total public support and revenue 88,743,946 12,874,032 7,455,014 281,417  (1,923,836) 107,430,573
Operating expenses:
Program services:
Public health education 26,267 - - - - 26,267
Professional education 160,997 - - - - 160,997
Direct services 67,751,508 10,563.928  6.752,825 - 264,512 (85,132) 85.247.641
Total program services 67,938,772 10,563,928 6,752,825 264,512 (85,132) 85,434,905
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New Famum ‘ < Elimin-
Hampshire* Center Vermont Maing . ations Total
Supporting services: :
Management and general $ 9,484,776 § 1,105,551 $ 710,875 § 30,713 $(1,838,704) $ 9,493,211
Fundraising ' : 2.053.912 24,250 51,860 24,577 - 2,154,599
~ ) - .
Total supporting services 11.538.688 1,129,801 762,735 55,290  (1.838.704) 11.647.810
Total functional expenses 79,477,460 11,693,727 7,515,560 319,802  (1,923,836) 97,082,715
Support of National programs . © 130276 . - - - - 130,276
Total operating cxpenses - ‘ 79,607,736 11,693,729 7,515,560 __ 319.802 (1.923.836) 97.212.991
Increase (decrease) in net assets from operations 9,136,210 1,180,303 ~ (60,546) (38,385) - - 10,217,582
Other non-operating expenses, gains and losses: -
Change in fair value of interest rate swap ) 1,243,067 - - - - 1,243,067
Netunrealized and realized losses on investments, net - (3,081,646) (163,551) ' - (1,035) - (3,246,232)
Increase in fair value of beneficial interest in trust held by others 11,278 = - c— - 11,278
Loss on sales, disposal and impairment of fixed assets (55.77D)  (1.881.569) (2,604) (1,151) — (1.941.095)
(1.883.072)  (2.045,120) (2.604) . (2,186) — (3.932.982)
Total increase (decrease) in net assets before effects of dissolution |
of affiliate 7,253,138 (864,817) {63,150y  * (40,571) - 6,284,600
Dissolution of an affiliate (3.934.851) — (2.861) 3,937.712 .- -
Total increase (decrease) in net assets 3,318,287 (864,817) (66,011) - 3,897,141 - 6,284,600
Net assets (deficit) at beginning of year : 26,302,965 13,251,874 1,487,283 (3,897,141) - '37.144,981
Net assets at end of year $20,621,252 $12,387,057 $1.421.272 § - 5 — $43,429,581

* Includes Champlin Place, Inc.
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Public support and revenue:
Public support:
Contributions, net
Special events, net
Annual campaignos, net
Bequests

Total public support

Revenue;
Fees and tuition
Grants ,
Dividend and interest income
Rental income
Intercompany revenue
Other

Total revenue
Total public support and revenue
Operating expenses:
Program services:
Public health education
Professional education

Direct services

Total program services

Year Ended August 31, 2021

New Farnum Elimin-
Hampshire Center Vermont Maine ations Total
$ 876642 § 55736 S 47,117 81,165 — $ 1,060,660
1,216,723 40,522 91,639 31,092 — 1,379,976
436,622 6,079 12,125 1,463 — 456,289
4.091 - - - - 4,091
2,534,078 102,337 150,881 113,720 - 2,901,016
43,397,874 9,104,776 7,150,066 438,916 (70,871) 60,020,761
28,138,237 3,877,583 622,212 458,342 = 33,096,374
607,365 26,794 1 240 - 634,400
29,775 - — — . - 29,775
2,171,005 - D= - (2,171,005) -
538,083 — 11,412 51 - 549 546
74,882,339 13.009.153 7.783.691 897.549 (2.241.876) 94,330,856
77,416,417 13,111,490 7,934,572 1,011,269 (2,241,876) 97,231,872
40,035 — 1,212 1,211 - 42,458
3,192 ' — — — — 3,192
62,168,239 12,591,072 7.058.225 861,379 (82.939y 82,595.976
62,211,466 12,591 072 7,059,437 862,590 (82,939) 82,641,626
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Supporting services:
Management and general
Fundraising i . -
Total supporting services
‘Total functional expenses
Support of National programs
Total operating expenses
Increase (decrease) in net assets from operations
" Other non-operating expenses, gains and losses:
Change in fair value of interest rate swap
Net unrealized and realized gains on investments, net
Decrease in fair value of beneficial interest in trust held by others

Loss on sales and disposals of fixed assets
Contribution of net assets from acquisition

Total increase (decrease) in net assets
Net assets (deficit) at beginning of year

Net asscts (deficit) at end of year

47

New Farnum Elimin-
Hampshire Center Vermont Maine ations _'Total
$ 9414,586 § 1,330,879 § 755,146 §$ 85,846 $(2,158,937y § 9,427,520
1.084.072 18.207 73,153 74,124 = 1,249,556
10.498.658 1.349.086 828.299 1-59,970 (2,158.937) 10.677.076
72,710,124 13,940,158 7,887,736 1,022,560 (2,241,876) 93,318,702
105,185 - - — — 105,185
72.815.309 13,940,158 7.887.736 1,022,560 (2,241.876) 93.423.887
4,601,108 (828,668) 46,836 (11,291) - 3,807,985
658,823 — - - — 658,823
1,919,950 110;636 — 1,964 - 2,032,550
(696) - = ~ - (696)
(35,216) (5,742) - - - (40,958)
702,572 - - - - 702,572
3,245,433 104,894 — 1.964 - = 3.352.291
7,846,541 t723,774) 46,836 (9,327) - 7,160,276
18,456,424 13,975,648 1,440,447 (3,887.814) = 29,984,705
$26,302,965 ~ $13.251.874 $1.487.283 $(3,897,141) $ — $37.144.981
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year Ended August 31, 2022

* Includes Champlin Place, Inc.

New Farnum _ Elimin-

Hampshire* Center ~ Vermont Maine ations " Total
Salaries and related expenses $59,016,148 § 7,909,493 $6;054,385 ' $ 164,839 $% -  $73,144,865
Professional fees 9,956,300 1,828,032 772,153 - 47970 (1,838,704) 10,765,751
Supplies 1,402,773 435,168 29,343 507 - 1,867,791
Telephone 555,548 95,972 74,650 6,333 - 732,503
Postage and shipping 44 949 1,615 14,919 - - 61,483
Occupancy 2,055,257 522,398 293,049 14,515 - 2,885,219
Qutside prmtmg, artwork and media 47,301 - 399 - - 47,700
Travel ¢ 1,419,777 35,458 143,244 2,657 (46,054) 1,555,082
Conventions and-meetmgs 116,866 44,568 3,625 15 - 165,074
Specific. assistance to individuals 1,681,563 12,718 50,891 80,759 (39,078) 1,786,853
Dues and subscriptions 31,475 (2.275) 135 - - 29,335
Minor equipment purchases and equipment rentals 228,853 18230 - 3,334 1,255 - 251,672
Ads, fees and miscellaneous 885,403 - 78,016 41,875 104 - 1,005,398
Interest 562,621 217,532 - ; - - 780,153
Depreciation and amortization 1.472.626 496,804 - 33,558 848 — 2,003,83 6

$79.477,460 $11.693.729 $7,515.560 $_319.802 ${ 1!923!836) $97!082271 5
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EASTER SEALS NEW HAMPSHIRE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Salaries and related expenses
Professional fees
Supplics
Telephone
Postage and shipping
Occupancy

~ Outside printing, artwork and media
Travel
Conventions and meetings
Specific assistance to individuals
Dues and subscriptions
Minor equipment purchases and equipment rentals
Ads, fees and miscellancous ‘
Interest
Depreciation and amortization

Year Ended August 31, 2021

New Farnum Elimin-
Hampshire Center Vermont Maine ations
$54,463,022 $ 9,581,703 $6,411,920 $- 646,210 § -
9,182,159 2,141,444 829,028 - 143,557 (2,171,005)
1,476,716 650,916 29,933 3,295 -
513,556 96,374 77,986 11,901 -
44,122 1,252 6,284 1,026 -
1,865,409 591,596 303,110 37,907 -
15,847 - 3,648 1,504 —
1,086,342 53,597 136,785 18,620 (44,559)
57,117 17,992 2,288 404 -
1,217,642 11,114 23,172 153,947 (26,312)
29,689 12,859 28 550 -
283,256 30,576 2,110 866 -
344,507 21,702 21,555 542 -
685,065 223,934 - - -
1,445,675 505,099 39.889 2,231 -
$72,710,124 $13.940.158 $7.887.736 $1.022.560

49

Total

$71,102,855
10,125,183
2,160,860
699,817
52,684
2,798,022
20,999
1,250,785
77,801
1,379,563
43,126
316,308
388,306
908,999
1,992,894

$(2.241.876) $93,318,702

-~
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Chairman
Andrew MacWilliam

Past Chairman
Matthew Boucher

Vice Chairman
Thomas Sullivan

Chairman Elect & Treasurer
Bryan Bouchard

Assistant Treasurer
Paul Voegelin

Secretary
Mary Flowers

General Counsel & Assistant Secretary

Bradford COOk (non-voting)

Last Updéted: October 13, 2023

2023 Board of Directors

Trevor Arp

- Gregory Baxter, MD

Rick Courtemanche
Eddiec Edwards
Ryan Fox

Charles Goodwin
Elizabeth Hitchcock
Linda James
William Lambrukos
Lucy Lénge

Susan Martore-Baker
Tracey Pelton
Richard Rawlings
Linda Roth

Nathan Saller
Sanjeev Srinivasan
Tim Wade

Rob Wieczorek
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Taylor Ferguson, MS, OTR/L

EDUCATION

University of New Hampshire - Durham, NH

Master of Science: Occupational Therapy December 2019
Bachelor of Science: Occupational Therapy — Minor: Human Development and Family Studies May 2018
WORK EXPERIENCE .

Easterseals NH — Salem, NH September 2020 -- Present

Early Supports and Services and Outpatient Occupational Therapist

» Conduct in-depth assessments to determine the child’s plan of care.

¢ Implement plan of care to thirty children ages birth through twenty with a variety of delays or disorders.

o Collaborate with team to ensure family goals are being addressed in the clinic or natural enviromment.
Fieldwork Student Supervisor ‘

¢ Coordinate 80% of Level Two OT student’s learning through direct supervision and weekly meetings.

* Educate Level One OT student on OT process implementation in pediatric clinic setting.

Haverhill Pavilion Behavioral Health Hospital — Haverhill, MA August 2020 — August 2623
Per Diem Occupational Therapist

o Ensured patient-centered and strengths-based care as individuals begin their recovery journey.

e Tacilitated groups by teaching skills to enhance communication and symptom management.
Superecalifragilistic Therapy Inc - MA - July 2020 — February 2021
Independent Occupational Therapy Contractor

* Created and implemented treatment plans to suit the individualized needs of a child in the home.

o Reported progress and current status to family members, teachers, or medical professionals.
Granite Pathways — Portsmouth, NH December 2019 — April 2020
Staff Generalist — Seacoast Pathways -

o Facilitated successful participation of twenty-two members by ensuring consistent daily structure.

e Collaborated with members to set meaningful goals for mental heaith recovery and socialization.

CERTIFICATIONS AND LICENSURE

» Massachusetts Board of Allied Health Professionals: Occupational Therapist 13576 Expires: June 2025
o New Hampshire Licensed Allied Health Professionals: Occupational Therapist 3031 Expires: Dec 2025
e  American Heart Association: BLS Provider

o SOS Approach to Feeding Basic Certification

o Therapeutic Listening Certified Provider

¢ DIR/Floortime Basic Certification

PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS

e American Occupational Therapy Association
o New Hampshire Association for Infant Mental Health
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Nicole Richérd

Personable and dedicated Customer Service Representative with extensive experience in technology
industry. Solid team player with upbeat, positive attitude and proven skills in establishing rapport

with clients. Motivated to rnaintain customer satisfaction and contribute to company success.
Specialize in. quahty. speed and process optimization. Articulate, enthusiastic and results-oriented with
demonstrated passion for buuidmg relationships, cultivating partnerships and growing businesses.

Work Experience -

Inside Sales Support
TTL, ine - Tewksbury, MA
January 2018 to Presant’

"+ Planned various product configurations to meet diverse customer needs.

» Attended company seminars to increase understanding and knowledge of products.

= Documented account activities and generated sales reports.

» Worked closely with team members to deliver project requirements, develop solutions and meat
deadlines,

« Earmned reputation for good attendance and hard work.

= Improved customer satisfaction by finding creative solutions to problems.

"+ Remained flexible during many changes to ensure the best service for customers and employer

» Tracked all data through Microsoft Office, Excel, and Word.

« Trained other locations in specific topics.

Business Operations Specialist {(Promotion)
TEMPOE LLT - Manchester, NH .
May 2017 to October 2017

+ Improved customer satisfaction by finding creative solutions to problems.

+. Answered calls in queue to answer customer questions, within specified metrics. Made monthly calls.
to over 200 retailers to educate and promote.

« Improved operations by working with team members and customers to find workable solutions.

+ Provided excellent service and attention to customers when face-to-face or through phone
conversations,

* Handled ail delegated tasks, including chargebacks and verification of depositing checks,

» Helped to build cliental with retallers and take acccuntabiirty to support operations team and their
back end processes,

Retail Support Specialist (Promotion)
TEMPOELLC - Manchaster, NH
October 2016 to May 2017

+ Handled inbound calls from mercﬁants that neaded assitance/support with regards to our program and
their point of sale system.
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* Adhered to all dialer metrics that were provided weekly.

* De-escalated calls from upset retailers and/or customers.

* Earned reputation for good attendance and hard work,

* Recognized by management for providing exceptional customer service.

Customer Service Representative/Collections Agent
TEMPOCE LLC - Manchester, NH
August 2015 to October 2016

» Evaluated customer account information to assess current issues and determine potential solutions.

* Asked probing questions to determine service needs and accurately input information into electronic
systems,

* Cultivated impactful relationships with customers and drove business development by delivering
product knowledge. '
* Escalated customer concerns, store issues and inventory requirements to supervisors.

= Consulted with customers to determine best methods to resolve service and billing issues,

* Part of the "super-agent" team that handled calls from start to finish, collected goal driven payments,
and handled all escalations with a professional demeanor.

+ Exceeded managements expectations of collections per month.

* Was asked to fly to Ohio to train other location before our company wide lay off.

Waitress (Promotion)/Hostess
Tuckaway Tavern & Butchery - Raymond, NH
March 2012 to August 2015

* Helped restaurant staff set up small and large events to coordinate smooth execution,

* Delivered outstanding service and support from initial interaction to final departure, maintaining loyal
clientele. :

+ Monitored dining area to assess server capacity and accurately estimate wait times.

* Walked through dining room during service to ensure guest satisfaction and advise servers and bussing
staff of specific service needs. . : -

= Established and maintained ongoing relationships with customer resulting in repeat business.

* Managed multiple tasks simultaneously while ensuring quality customer service.

Internship
Tuckaway Tavern & Butchery - Lendonderry, NH
January 2015 to April 2015

» Worked with elementary aged students in the classrooms through push in, pull out, and lunch breaks.
* Prepared crafts and activities for group or individual sessions.

* Followed treatment plans implemented by SLP

* Documented patient progress for SLP

* Assisted with Clericai duties and preparing materials for each session,

Speech Language Pathology Assistance (Internship)- 01/2015-04/2015

Golden Brook Elementary School - Windham NH

* Worked with elementary aged students in the classrooms through push in, pull out, and lunch breaks.
* Prepared crafts and activities for group or individual sessions.

* Followed treatment plans implemented by SLP

* Documented patient progress for SLP

* Assisted with Clerical duties and preparing materials for each session.
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Education

Associate of Arts
Nashua Community College - Nashua, NH
September 2017

Bachelor of Science in Criminal Justice
Southern New Hampshire University - Hooksett, NH
July 2017

High School Diploma
Raymond High School - Raymond, NH
May 2015

Skills

* Problem resolution

* Adrministrative support
+ Communications

+ Customer service

« Team building

+ MS Office

« MS Excel

« MS Powerpoint

+ Salesforce

« Average typing speed
* 59 WPM
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Bianca
Santos

Clinical Fellow
Speech-Language
. Pathologist -
July 2023-April 2024

'EDUCATION
Boston University

2021-2023
M.S in Speech-Language
Pathology

University of Florida
2018-2020
BS in Health Science
Communication Sciences
and Disorders -
Santa Fe College
2016-2018
AA in Communication
Sciences and Disorders

CERTIFICATIONS

TEFL/TESOL- March 2021

POST GRADUATE EXPERIENCE
Northeast Rehabilitation Hospital Network

CFSLP | July 2023-April 04, 2024
« Conduct evaluations and provide treatment for children ages 22 months to 12 years
old with ASD, expressive and receptive language disorder, and other disabilities
+ Complete AAC trials, funding reports and parent training
« Experience providing therapy using basic Spanish with the support from medical
interpreters when needed

GRADUATE CLINICAL EXPERIENCE

CPR/BLS- June 2023-June 2025

ATouchChat Partner- January 2024

Leadership Pirogram
2022

LEADERSHIP EXPERIENCE

ASHA's Minority Student

Boston Children's Hospital-
Graduate SLP | January 2023-June 2023
« Conducted pediatric outpatient'evaluations within the AAC and ASD program
» Provided speech and language intervention under supervision for children with
ASD '

Boston University's Infant-Toddler AAC Prograrﬁ

Graduate SLP | January 2023-April 2023
« Provided AAC evaluations and treatment for infants and toddlers with

severe neurodevelopmental conditions.

Boston University Speech-Language Clinic

Graduate SLP | October 2022-December 2022
+ Provided Aural Rehabilitation intervention mainly in English and ASL

with eceasional Spanish for a young adult with a cochlear implant

Spaulding Rehabilitation Hospital
Graduate SLP | September 2022-December 2022
« Analyzed MBSImP studies and provided swallow therapy under
supervision in the inpatient rehab center

» Completed chart reviews and update client charts on EPIC

Aphasia Resource Center
Graduate Intern I.September 2022-December 2022 .
. Co-led group sessions at BU Aphasia Resource Center for adults with
aphasia {cooking, art, healthy hearing, and.conversation groups}
« Assisted in facilitating a control conversation treatment group for an
ongoing research project

Smiles for Speech: Project Dominican Republic

Student Intern | Auqust 14-21 2022 _
« Provided speech and language consultations and training to families and

residential centers on how to use low tech AAC boards
« Assisted'in translating and presenting speech therapy strategies in
Spanish to local teachers :

Baldwin Elementary- Cambridge

Graduate SLP [ January 2022-June 2022
« Provided speech and language intervention under supervision

for students_: K-'6 with speech sound and language disorder
- Wrote clinical evaluation reports and IEPs

Boston University Speech-Language Clinic
Graduate SLP | September 2021-December 2021
« Provided speech and language intervention under supervision
for an clder adolescent with autism with language delays in
social pragmatics
« Wrote treatment plans and reports
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and cenditions of the agreement. .
Job desctriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: Easterseals NH

NAME MOBTITLE - FROM THIS * | “SALARY
o . | ' . . | CONTRACT | L
Taylor Ferguson Occupational Therapist $748.00 $77,792.00
Nicole Richard Speech Language Assistant $513.40 $53,393.00
Bianca Santos ~ |Speech Language Pathologist $451.90 $94,000.00
i $0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00




